
 

 

Please ask for Democratic Services: Telephone 01775 764626  

e-mail: demservices@sholland.gov.uk 

 

REVISED 
AGENDA 
 
 
 

 
 

Committee - GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 
Date & Time - Thursday, 30 July 2020 at 4.00 pm 
 

Venue - This will be a meeting held in line with The 
Local Authorities & Police & Crime Panels 
(Coronavirus) (Flexibility of Local Authority & 
Police & Crime Panel Meetings) (England & 
Wales) Regulations 2020 

 
    The meeting will be held virtually via Zoom and 
    streamed live, via the following link: 
  www.facebook.com/SouthHollandDCofficial/ 

Membership of the Governance and Audit Committee: 
 
Councillors: C J T H Brewis, A M Newton, P A Redgate, J L Reynolds (Vice-Chairman), 
M D Seymour, E J Sneath (Chairman) and S C Walsh 
 
Quorum 3. 

 
 

 Persons attending the meeting are 
requested to turn off mobile telephones  

 
Democratic Services 
Council Offices, Priory Road 
Spalding, Lincs PE11 2XE 
 
Date:  24 July 2020 

Public Document Pack

Page 1

http://www.facebook.com/SouthHollandDCofficial/


 

 

AGENDA 
 

PLEASE NOTE TIMINGS 
ARE APPROXIMATE 
 
TIME 
 
4.00pm 1.  Apologies for absence. 

  
 

4.01pm 2.  Declaration of Interests -  
(Where a Councillor has a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest 
the Councillor must declare the interest and leave the 
meeting without participating in any discussion or making 
a statement on the item, except where a Councillor is 
permitted to remain as a result of a grant of 
dispensation).  
 

 

4.02pm 3.  Minutes -  
To sign as a correct record the minutes of the meeting 
held on 12 March 2020  (copy enclosed). 
 

(Pages 5 - 
14) 

4.05pm 4.  Annual Treasury Management Review 2019/20 -  
To consider the Annual Treasury Management Review 
for 2019/20 prior to it being submitted to Council for 
approval (report of the Executive Director 
Commercialisation (S151) enclosed. 
 

(Pages 15 
- 30) 

4.20pm 5.  Governance and Audit Committee Work Programme -  
To set out the Work Programme of the Governance and 
Audit Committee (report of the Executive Manager 
Governance (Deputy Monitoring Officer) enclosed). 
 

(Pages 31 
- 36) 

4.25pm 6.  Follow Up Report on Internal Audit Recommendations -  
To provide members with the position on the progress 
made by management in implementing agreed Internal 
Audit recommendations as at 31 March 2020 (report of 
the Internal Audit Manager enclosed). 
 

(Pages 37 
- 48) 

4.40pm 7.  Annual Report and Opinion 2019/20 -  
To provide the Council with an Annual Report and 
Opinion for 2019/20, drawing upon the outcomes of 
Internal Audit work performed over the course of the 
year.  The report also concludes on the Effectiveness of 
Internal Audit (report of the Head of Internal Audit 
enclosed). 
 

(Pages 49 
- 66) 

4.55pm 8.  Progress Report on Internal Audit Activity -  
To examine the progress made between 2 March 2020 
and 24 July 2020 in relation to the completion of the 
Annual Internal Audit Plan for 2019/20 (report of the 
Head of Internal Audit enclosed). 
 

(Pages 67 
- 90) 

Page 2



 

 

(Please note that Appendix 3 to this report is not for 
publication by virtue of Paragraph 3 (Information relating 
to the financial or business affairs of any particular 
person (including the authority holding that information)) 
in Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 
1972, and is therefore attached to this agenda at item 
11).  

 
5.05pm 9.  Any other items which the Chairman decides are urgent. 

-  
 
 
NOTE: No other business is permitted unless by 

reason of special circumstances, which 
shall be specified in the minutes, the 
Chairman is of the opinion that the item(s) 
should be considered as a matter of 
urgency. 

 

 

5.06pm 10.  To consider resolving that, under section 100A (4) of the 
Local Government Act 1972, the public be excluded from 
the meeting for the following item of business on the 
grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of exempt 
information as defined in Paragraph 3 of part 1 of 
Schedule 12A of the Act. 
  

 

5.07pm 11.  Progress report on Internal Audit activity (exempt 
appendix) -  
(Exempt Appendix 3 enclosed). 
 

(Pages 91 
- 96) 

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank



- 34 - 
 

 

Minutes of a meeting of the GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE held in the 
Meeting Room 1, Council Offices, Priory Road, Spalding, on Thursday, 12 March 
2020 at 4.00 pm. 
 

PRESENT 

  
E J Sneath (Chairman) 

 
 

 

C J T H Brewis 
 

M D Seymour 
 

S C Walsh 
 

Apologies for absence were received from or on behalf of Councillors A M Newton, 
P A Redgate and J L Reynolds, and Alison Riglar (Ernst & Young)  
 
In Attendance:  F Haywood (Internal Audit Manager, Eastern Internal Audit Services), 
the Strategic Finance and Compliance Manager, the Corporate Improvement and 
Performance Manager, the Finance Control Manager, the Business Intelligence 
Officer and the Democratic Services Officer. 
 
 
 Action By 

40. DECLARATION OF INTERESTS   

  

 Councillor Sneath informed the Committee that she did not have a 
Disclosable Pecuniary Interest, but in the interest of transparency, 
she wished to declare that she was a Director of Welland Homes, 
should any information regarding the company be discussed 
during the meeting. 

 

   

41. MINUTES   

  

 The minutes of the meeting of the Governance and Audit 
Committee held on 16 January 2020 were signed by the 
Chairman as a correct record.  
 
The Chairman asked whether it would be possible to have an 
additional, non-Councillor member on the Governance and Audit 
Committee, to provide additional experience.  Officers stated that 
they would look into whether this could be done, and would 
provide feedback in due course. 

 

   

42. EXTERNAL AUDIT - ANNUAL AUDIT LETTER   

  

 The external auditors, Ernst and Young gave their apologies for 
not attending, and also advised that they would not attend as 
many meetings of the Governance and Audit Committee due to 
work constraints. 
 
In their absence, the Strategic Finance and Compliance Manager 
provided an update of the current situation.   

 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3.



- 35 - 
 
GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE - 
12 March 2020 

 

 

 

 
The 2018/19 Annual Audit Letter summarised the key messages 
from the audit and was a public facing document which the 
Council were required to publish on their website. All of these 
messages were reported in the Audit Results Report at the 
meeting of the Committee on 16 January 2020 and there was 
therefore no new information.   The auditors confirmed that, 
following the last meeting of the Governance and Audit 
Committee, the audit opinion and certificate were issued on 28 
February 2020.  
 
The Strategic Finance and Compliance Manager provided a 
further update, advising that the 2018/19 accounts had now been 
signed and closed, and work was now being undertaken to start 
work on the 2019/20 accounts and close down. 
 
At the last meeting, the Committee had asked that an update be 
provided from KPMG on the error rate on grant claims.  The 
Strategic Finance and Compliance Manager advised that she 
would circulate the update to members of the Committee. 
 
Members noted the contents of the report, and thanked staff for 
their work in what had been a difficult year. 
 
AGREED: 
 
That the External Audit Annual Audit Letter be noted. 

   

43. PROGRESS REPORT ON INTERNAL AUDIT ACTIVITY   

  

 Consideration was given to the report of the Head of Internal 
Audit, which examined the progress made between 6 January 
2020 and 2 March in relation to the completion of the Annual 
Internal Audit Plan for 2019/20. 
 
The Governance and Audit Committee received updates on 
progress made against the annual internal audit plan.  The report 
formed part of the overall reporting requirements to assist the 
Council in discharging its responsibilities in relation to the internal 
audit activity. 
 
The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards required the Chief 
Audit Executive to report to the Governance and Audit Committee 
the performance of internal audit relative to its agreed plan, 
including any significant risk exposures and control issues.  The 
frequency of reporting at South Holland was to each meeting.   
 
To comply with the above requirements, the report identified: 

 

Page 6



- 36 - 
 
GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE - 
12 March 2020 

 

 

 

 

 Any significant changes to the approved Audit Plan; 

 Progress made in delivering the agreed audits for the year; 

 Any significant outcomes arising from those audits; and 

 Performance measures to date 
 
The Committee was advised of details of progress made in 
delivering the agreed audit work, and the outcomes arising from 
the auditor’s work was detailed within the report. 
 
Since the last report to the Committee in January 2020, there had 
been no significant changes to the Annual Internal Audit Plan 
agreed in March 2019. 
 
During the period covered by the report, Internal Audit Services 
had issued one final report – Markets (Limited Assurance).  The 
recommendations raised related to key procedures with regard to 
cash, banking and income and that a strategic review of all the 
council’s markets be undertaken to determine their viability in 
terms of demand and cost benefits.  The deadlines for these 
areas went some way into the future and would therefore remain 
on the follow-up report for some time. 
 
Members stated that the markets were important to the towns in 
the area, and that it was important to work with market stall 
holders to ensure a consistent message.  The auditor responded 
that the Council saw this as a clear objective, which it wished to 
take forward. 
 
AGREED: 
 
That the report be noted. 

   

44. FOLLOW UP REPORT ON INTERNAL AUDIT 
 RECOMMENDATIONS  

 

  

 Consideration was given to the report of the Head of Internal 
Audit, which provided members with the position on the progress 
made by management in implementing agreed Internal Audit 
recommendations as at 2 March 2020. 
 
In 2017/18, a total of 85 recommendations were raised by both 
internal audit providers.  Of those, 81 had been implemented by 
management, four were outstanding (one urgent and three 
important).  The management responses in relation to the 
outstanding urgent and important outstanding recommendations 
could be seen at Appendix 2 of the report. 
 

 

Page 7



- 37 - 
 
GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE - 
12 March 2020 

 

 

 

In 2018/19, a total of 76 recommendations were raised by both 
internal audit providers.  Of those, 58 had been completed and 9 
(one urgent, three important and five needing attention) were 
overdue.  A total of nine recommendations were not yet due.  The 
management responses in relation to the outstanding important 
recommendations could be seen at Appendix 3 of the report. 
 
In 2019/20, a total of 46 recommendations had been so far raised.  
Of these, 19 had been completed, seven were outstanding (two 
urgent and five needing attention).  A total of 20 were not yet due. 
 
The information within the report was considered, and the 
following issues were raised: 
 

 The Internal Audit Manager commented that, although she 
regularly attended performance, risk and audit meetings, and 
worked with officers, there were some historical outstanding 
actions that had to be addressed, as these could have an 
impact on an audit opinion. 

 Members commented that where important deadlines were 
set, managers had to be aware that they should be met, and 
that extensions should only be sanctioned for valid reasons. 

 The Internal Audit Manager sought the Committee’s support in 
monitoring the situation, and requesting that officers attend 
future meetings to explain why deadlines had not been met.  
Members agreed that they would support this. 

 The Corporate Improvement and Performance Manager also 
stated that lack of feedback was a frustration for himself and 
the auditor.  If an officer felt that no further action was required 
in a particular area, a rationale for this had to be provided. 

 The Committee agreed that the Internal Audit Manager and 
the Corporate Improvement and Performance Manager should 
identify any areas where deadlines were not being met, and 
that relevant officers be encouraged to address the situation. 

 
AGREED: 
 
a) That the information detailed within the report be noted; 
 
b) That the Internal Audit Manager and the Corporate 

Improvement and Performance Manager identify any areas 
where deadlines were not being met, and that relevant officers 
be encouraged to address the situation; and  

 
c) That where any future areas of non-performance were 

identified, relevant officers be requested to attend a meeting of 
the Governance and Audit Committee to explain reasons why 
deadlines were not being met. 

Page 8



- 38 - 
 
GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE - 
12 March 2020 

 

 

 

   

45. STRATEGIC AND ANNUAL AUDIT PLAN 2020/21   

  

 Consideration was given to the report of the Head of Internal 
Audit which provided an overview of the stages followed prior to 
the formulation of the Strategic Internal Audit Plan for 2020/21 to 
2022/23 and the Annual Internal Audit Plan for 2020/21. 
 
The Internal Audit Plan provided the basis for the Annual Audit 
Opinion on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of South 
Holland District Council’s framework of governance, risk 
management and control. 
 
The Strategic and Annual Internal Audit Plan 2020/21 was 
attached as an appendix to the report. 
 
Members considered the report and the following issues were 
raised: 
 

 In light of the COVID-19 health emergency, what work was 
being undertaken with regard to Business Continuity and 
Emergency Planning?   

o The Internal Audit Manager commented that work 
around modelling and testing had to be undertaken, 
and that this was a key action point. 

o The Corporate Improvement and Performance 
Manager stated that there would be a number of 
exercises undertaken to test plans, and change if 
necessary. 

 

 Members asked what the position was with regard to markets 
and car parks. 

o The Internal Audit Manager advised that an audit 
had already taken place of markets, and that an 
audit of car parks would be reported at the next 
meeting. Recommendations from the audit of 
markets would need to be followed up in line with 
the usual process. 

 

 Members asked why there had been delays in the 
implementation of Office 365. 

o The Internal Audit Manager advised that the 
implementation had been found to be more complex 
than originally anticipated .  However, the auditors 
were receiving regular programme updates with 
regard to the roll out, and they had been assured 
that it would be ready to review next year. 

 

 

Page 9



- 39 - 
 
GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE - 
12 March 2020 

 

 

 

AGREED: 
 
That the Committee note and approve: 
 
a) The Internal Audit Strategy for 2020/21 
b) The Strategic Internal Audit Plans  2020/21 to 2022/23; and 
c) The Annual Internal Audit Plan 2020/21 

   

46. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2019/20 ACCOUNTING POLICIES   

  

 Consideration was given to the report of the Executive Director 
Commercialisation (S151) which asked the Committee to review 
and agree the Accounting Policies for inclusion in the Financial 
Statement 2019/20. 
 
Within the Financial Statements, the Council disclosed the 
accounting policies it had applied to all material balances and 
transactions.  Unless there were major changes to accounting 
rules and regulations, accounting policies did not change 
significantly between years, which enabled the Statements to be 
comparable from one year to the next. 
 
The report presented the proposed accounting policies to be 
adopted for the 2019/20 financial year.  The policies were 
prepared in line with CIPFA’s Code of Practice on Local Authority 
Accounting 2019/20 (the Code). 
 
It was good practice to consider and agree the accounting policies 
in advance of the production and approval of the draft accounts, 
and the report formed an  annual review by the Governance and 
Audit Committee. 
 
The majority of the accounting policies detailed within Appendix A 
to the report had not changed from 2018/19, the only change 
being: 
 

 Note 15. Investment Property – updated to clarify that 
assets were only moved into or out of the Investment 
Property classifications when there was evidence of a 
change of use. 

 
Members considered the report, and the following issues were 
raised: 
 

 Was the Authority in a position to react quickly, due to the 
current period of volatility. 

o The Strategic Finance and Compliance Manager 
advised that the Authority had no investments in 

 

Page 10



- 40 - 
 
GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE - 
12 March 2020 

 

 

 

stocks and shares, all were cash investments with 
some liquid deposits, and a spread of investments. 

 

 Did the Authority have sufficient resilience if there was a drop 
in interest rates? 

o The Strategic Finance and Compliance Manager 
advised that profiling of this scenario was being 
undertaken, and that mitigation would be to look to 
lend money to other authorities, as this provided a 
better rate of interest. 

 

 Members asked if the accounting policy was produced every 
year and officers responded that it was, and this year with only 
a small change.  It was requested that, in future years, if there 
was only a small change, that this be identified.   

 
AGREED: 
 
That the Accounting Policies for 2019/20, attached as Appendix A 
to the report, be agreed. 

   

47. GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE WORK 
 PROGRAMME  

 

  

 Consideration was given to the report of the Executive Manager – 
Governance (Deputy Monitoring Officer), which set out the Work 
Programme of the Governance and Audit Committee. 
 
The schedule of meetings for 2020/21 was now available, and 
dates for future Governance and Audit Committee meetings had 
been added to the Work Programme.  Regular items had been 
transferred from the 2019/20 municipal year to the appropriate 
meeting dates for the new municipal year.  Contributors were 
requested to confirm that the reports, and the meeting dates on 
which they were to be reported, were correct. 
 

 Members questioned whether further training for the 
Committee was being considered,  consideration. 

o Officers responded that the internal auditor had 
provided audit and internal audit training in June 2019.  
The next planned training would cover local 
government statements of accounts, and what areas of 
the accounts should be scrutinised.  The training would 
provide assistance to the Committee in this function, 
and would be available to only Governance and Audit 
Committee members.  The Strategic Finance and 
Compliance Manager would liaise with relevant 
providers and then provide the committee with available 

 

Page 11



- 41 - 
 
GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE - 
12 March 2020 

 

 

 

dates. 
 
AGREED: 
 
a) That the report be noted; and  
 
b) That the committee be provided with dates, in due course, for 

training on local government statements of accounts. 
   

48. ANY OTHER ITEMS WHICH THE CHAIRMAN DECIDES ARE 
 URGENT.  

 

  

 There were none.  

   

49. QUARTER 3 2019-20 RISK REPORT   

  

 Consideration was given to the report of the Executive Director 
Strategy and Governance, which provided an update to the 
committee on the progress of the Council’s identified strategic 
risks. 
 
There were 18 strategic risks included within the Q3 19/20 Risk 
Report, the same as at the end of Q2 19/20.  The level of 
identified risk at Q3 was 2 high risk, 16 medium risk and 0 low 
risk. 
 
It was noted that the risk relating to the impact to the Council 
following the introduction of the Homelessness Reduction Act had 
been downgraded.  In addition, the risk which specifically 
measured the total spend of temporary accommodation, and the 
impact that this could have on the Council, had remained static for 
the quarter.   
 
Further to the quarter 2 report, officers were liaising closely with 
the Human Resources department to maintain a watching brief of 
the National Pay Claim. 
 
Following the adoption of the refreshed Corporate Plan, a 
wholesale review of both strategic and operational risk would be 
undertaken, and it was proposed that this would be brought to the 
Governance and Audit Committee within the Q4 19/20 Risk 
Report. 
 
Following consideration of the report, the following issues were 
raised: 
 

 The Corporate Improvement and Enforcement Office provided 
further information regarding risks around the COVID-19 

 

Page 12



- 42 - 
 
GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE - 
12 March 2020 

 

 

 

pandemic: 
o With regard to financial matters, consideration needed 

to be given to the impact, and to introducing mitigating 
solutions.  

o Consideration was being given to how it would affect 
local residents, local businesses and the economy.  

o Risks were moving very quickly and were being 
updated on a daily basis. 

o The Authority was liaising with partner organisations. 
o The Authority was in a fortunate situation as its disaster 

recovery had been tested in a number of instances.   
o Consideration was being given to which services 

provided by the Authority were vital and had to be 
legally provided. 

 Members commented that good advice was being provided for 
the Authority’s staff. 

 
Members were also advised of the following: 
 

 Although The ‘Impact of Homeless Reduction Act’  risk was 
showing as high, good results were now being seen.  The 
result had been  a reduction of 90% on the spend for 
temporary accommodation, and the team were to be 
congratulated for this. 

 The new Corporate Plan had now been approved, and new 
risks were being assessed, which would be introduced in the 
next quarter. 

 
AGREED: 
 
That the content of the report be noted. 

   

50. EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC   

  

 DECISION: 
 
That, under section 100A (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, 
the public be excluded from the meeting for the following item of 
business on the grounds that it involved the likely disclosure of 
exempt information as defined in Paragraph 3 of part 1 of 
Schedule 12A of the Act. 

 

   

51. QUARTER 3 2019-20 RISK REPORT   

  

 The Committee considered the exempt information provided 
within the appendix to the Quarter 3 19/20 Risk Report.  
 
Officers advised that the issue detailed within the exempt 

 

Page 13



- 43 - 
 
GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE - 
12 March 2020 

 

 

 

appendix, whilst still a risk, continued to be reviewed 
   

 
(The meeting ended at 5.10 pm) 
 
(End of minutes) 

Page 14



SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
Report of:  Executive Director Commercialisation (S151), Christine Marshall 
 
To: Governance and Audit Committee 30 July 2020 
 Council 23 September 2020 
  
Author: Sean Howsam – Treasury & Investment Manager (PSPS) 
 
Subject:  Annual Treasury Management Review 2019/20 
 
Purpose: To consider the Annual Treasury Management Review for 2019/20 prior to it 

being submitted to Council for approval. 
 

 
Recommendation(s):  
 
1)    That the Governance and Audit Committee scrutinise the Annual Treasury Management 

Review 2019/20 and make any comments for consideration by Council when they consider 
this document for approval at their meeting on 23 September 2020.  
 

 
1.0 BACKGROUND 
 
1.1 This Council is required by regulations issued under the Local Government Act 2003 to 

produce an annual treasury management review of activities and the actual prudential and 
treasury indicators for 2019/20. This report meets the requirements of both the CIPFA 
Code of Practice on Treasury Management (the Code) and the CIPFA Prudential Code for 
Capital Finance in Local Authorities (the Prudential Code). 

 
 For 2019/20 the following reports have been submitted:  

 an annual treasury strategy in advance of the year (Council 27 February 2019); 

 a mid year (minimum) treasury update report (Council 27 November 2019); 

 An annual review following the end of the year describing the activity compared to 
the strategy (this report). 

1.2 The regulatory environment places responsibility on members for the review and scrutiny 
of treasury management policy and activities.  This report is therefore important in that 
respect, as it provides details of the outturn position for treasury activities and highlights 
compliance with the Council’s policies previously approved by members. 

 
1.3 This Council confirms that it has complied with the requirement under the Code to give 

prior scrutiny to all of the above treasury management reports by the Governance and 
Audit Committee.  Member training on treasury management issues was undertaken on 
14 November 2019 in order to support the members’ scrutiny role. 
 

1.4 The Treasury Management function is administered by Public Sector Partnership Services 
Ltd on behalf of the Council. 

 
1.5 The Council is currently in the process of producing its financial statements for the 

2019/20 financial year and these will be subject to external audit.  The figures in this 
report are therefore subject to change and any such changes will be reflected in the report 
submitted to Council.  

  

Page 15

Agenda Item 4.



 
2.0   INTRODUCTION 
 
2.1 This report summarises the following :- 
 

 Capital activity during the year; 

 Impact of this activity on the Council’s underlying indebtedness (the Capital 
Financing Requirement); 

 The actual prudential and treasury indicators; 

 Overall treasury position identifying how the Council has borrowed in relation to its 
indebtedness, and the impact on investment balances; 

 Summary of interest rate movements in the year; 

 Borrowing and investment outturn positions; 

 Economy and interest rates. 

 
3.0 THE COUNCIL’S CAPITAL EXPENDITURE AND FINANCING 2019/20  
 
3.1 The Council undertakes capital expenditure on long-term assets.  These activities may 

either be: 
 

 financed immediately through the application of capital or revenue resources 
(capital receipts, capital grants, revenue contributions etc.), which has no resultant 
impact on the Council’s borrowing need; or 

 if insufficient financing is available, or a decision is taken not to apply resources, the 
capital expenditure will give rise to a borrowing need. 

 

3.2 The actual capital expenditure forms one of the required prudential indicators.  The 
following tables show the actual capital expenditure and how this was financed. 

 

£’000 General Fund 
2018/19 
Actual 

2019/20 
Estimate 

2019/20 
Actual 

Capital expenditure 3,678 10,351 3,901 

Financed in year (2,072) (5,885) (2,786) 

Unfinanced capital expenditure 1,606 4,466 1,115 

 
  

£’000 Housing Revenue 
Account (HRA) 

2018/19 
Actual 

2019/20 
Estimate 

2019/20 
Actual 

Capital expenditure 4,885 11,184 8,972 

Financed in year (4,885) (11,184) (8,972) 

Unfinanced capital expenditure - - - 

 
 

Page 16



4.0 THE COUNCIL’S OVERALL BORROWING NEED 
 
4.1 The Council’s underlying need to borrow for capital expenditure is termed the Capital 

Financing Requirement (CFR).  This figure is a gauge of the Council’s indebtedness. The 
CFR results from the capital activity of the Council and resources used to pay for the 
capital spend.  It represents the 2019/20 unfinanced capital expenditure (see above 
table), and prior years’ net or unfinanced capital expenditure which has not yet been paid 
for by revenue or other resources. 

 
4.2 Part of the Council’s treasury activities is to address the funding requirements for this 

borrowing need.  Depending on the capital expenditure programme, the treasury service 
organises the Council’s cash position to ensure that sufficient cash is available to meet 
the capital plans and cash flow requirements.  This may be sourced by utilising temporary 
cash resources within the Council or through borrowing from external bodies (such as the 
Government, through the Public Works Loan Board (PWLB) or the money markets). 

 
4.3 Reducing the CFR – the Council’s (non HRA) underlying borrowing need (CFR) is not 

allowed to rise indefinitely.  Statutory controls are in place to ensure that capital assets are 
broadly charged to revenue over the life of the asset.  The Council is required to make an 
annual revenue charge, called the Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP), to reduce the 
CFR.  This is effectively a repayment of the non-HRA borrowing need (there is no 
statutory requirement to reduce the HRA CFR). This differs from the treasury 
management arrangements which ensure that cash is available to meet capital 
commitments.  External debt can also be borrowed or repaid at any time, but this does not 
change the CFR. 

 
The total CFR can also be reduced by: 
 
 the application of additional capital financing resources (such as unapplied capital 

receipts); or  
 

 charging more than the statutory revenue charge (MRP) each year through a 
Voluntary Revenue Provision (VRP). 
 

4.4 The Council’s 2019/20 MRP Policy as required by Ministry of Housing, Communities and 
Local Government (MHCLG) guidance was approved as part of the Treasury 
Management Strategy Report for 2019/20 on 27 February 2019. 
 

4.5 The Council’s CFR for the year is shown below, and represents a key prudential indicator: 
 

CFR (£’000): General Fund 
31 March  

2019  
Actual 

31 March 
 2020  

Budget 

31 March 
 2020  
Actual 

Opening Balance  3,847 5,453 5,453 

Add unfinanced capital expenditure 
(as above) 

1,606 4,466 1,115 

Closing Balance 5,453 9,919 6,568 

 
 
 

Page 17



CFR (£’000): HRA 
31 March  

2019  
Actual 

31 March 
 2020  

Budget 

31 March 
 2020  
Actual 

Opening Balance  68,439 68,439 68,439 

Add unfinanced capital expenditure 
(as above) 

- - - 

Closing Balance 68,439 68,439 68,439 

 
Borrowing activity is constrained by prudential indicators for net borrowing and the CFR, 
and by the authorised limit. 

 
4.6 Gross borrowing and the CFR - in order to ensure that borrowing levels are prudent over 

the medium term and only for a capital purpose, the Council should ensure that its gross 
external borrowing does not, except in the short term, exceed the total of the CFR in the 
preceding year (2018/19) plus the estimates of any additional CFR for the current 
(2019/20) and next two financial years.  This essentially means that the Council is not 
borrowing to support revenue expenditure.  This indicator allows the Council some 
flexibility to borrow in advance of its immediate capital needs in 2019/20.  The table below 
highlights the Council’s gross borrowing position against the CFR.  The Council has 
complied with this prudential indicator. 

 

 
31 March 2019  

Actual 
(£’000) 

31 March 2020  
Budget 
(£’000) 

31 March 2020  
Actual 
(£’000) 

Gross Borrowing Position  67,456 67,456 67,456 

CFR 73,892 78,358 75,007 

  
4.7 The authorised limit is the “affordable borrowing limit” required by s3 of the Local 

Government Act 2003.  Once this has been set, the Council does not have the power to 
borrow above this level.  The following table demonstrates that during 2019/20 the Council 
has maintained gross borrowing within its authorised limit. 
 
The operational boundary is the expected borrowing position of the Council during the 
year.  Periods where the actual position is either below or over the boundary is acceptable 
subject to the authorised limit not being breached. 

  

Page 18



Actual financing costs as a proportion of net revenue stream - this indicator identifies the 
trend in the cost of capital (borrowing and other long term obligation costs net of 
investment income) against the net revenue stream. 
 

 2019/20 

Authorised limit £91m 

Maximum gross borrowing position £67.456m 

Operational boundary £87m 

Average gross borrowing position £67.456m 

Financing costs as a proportion of net revenue stream – Non HRA 
                                                                                          HRA 

-2.59% 
36.88% 

 
5.0 TREASURY POSITION AS AT 31 MARCH 2020 
 
5.1 The Council’s debt and investment position is organised by the treasury management 

service in order to ensure adequate liquidity for revenue and capital activities, security for 
investments and to manage risks within all treasury management activities. At the 
beginning and the end of 2019/20 the Council’s treasury position including accrued 
interest was as follows: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
31/3/19 
Amount 

£’000 

Rate/ 
Return 

% 

Average 
Life 

 

31/3/20 
Amount 

£’000 

Rate/ 
Return 

% 

Average 
Life 

 

Fixed rate funding 
    PWLB 
    Leases 

 
67,456 

- 

 
3.48 
n/a 

 
43 years 

 
67,456 

- 

 
3.48 
n/a 

 
42 years 

 

Total debt 67,456 3.48 43 years 67,456 3.48 42 years 

  CFR 73,892   75,007   

  Over/(under) borrowing (6,436)   (7,551)   

Cash and investments:  

  long term equity and   
  service loans 

(5,605) n/a n/a (7,034) n/a n/a 

  short term (33,602) 1.07 173 days (26,118) 0.97 138 days 

  instant access deposits (4,977) 0.73 1 day (11,192) 0.57 1 day 

Total cash and 
investments 

(44,184) 1.02 150 days (44,344) 0.85 97 days 

Net debt 23,272   23,112   

Page 19



5.2 Investments and Cash and Cash Equivalents held as at 31 March 2020 including accrued 
interest were as follows: 

 
  

INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO Actual 
31/03/19 
£000’s 

Actual 
31/03/19 

% 

Actual 
31/03/20 
£000’s 

Actual 
31/03/20 

% 

Treasury Investments 

Banks 29,556 76 26,112 70 

Building Societies 3,002 8 3,004 8 

Local Authorities 3,019 8 2,001 5 

Total managed in house 35,577 92 31,117 83 

Money Market Funds 3,002 8 6,193 17 

Total managed externally 3,002 8 6,193 17 

Total Treasury Investments 38,579 100 37,310 100 

Non-Treasury Investments (at fair value) 

Equity 2,725 49 3,664 52 

Service Loans (long term debtors) 2,880 51 3,370 48 

Total Non-Treasury Investments 5,605 100 7,034 100 

 
  

SUMMARY Actual 
31/03/19 
£000’s 

Actual 
31/03/19 

% 

Actual 
31/03/20 
£000’s 

Actual 
31/03/20 

% 

Total Treasury Investments 38,579 87 37,310 84 

Total Non-Treasury Investments 5,605 13 7,034 16 

Total of all Investments 44,184 100 44,344 100 

 
 

The maturity structure of the investment portfolio was as follows: 

 2018/19 
Actual 
£’000 

2019/20 
Actual 
£’000 

Investments 
  Longer than 1 year 
  Under 1 year 

Total 

 
  5,605 
38,579 
44,184 

 
  7,034 
37,310 
44,344 

 

  

Page 20



The exposure to fixed and variable rates on investments was as follows: 

 31/3/19 
Actual 
£’000 

31/3/20 
Actual 
£’000 

Fixed rate  
36,482 

(83%) 

29,488 

(66%) 

Variable rate  
7,702 

(17%) 

14,856 

(34%) 

 
6.0  THE STRATEGY FOR 2019/20 
 
6.1 Investment strategy and control of interest rate risk 
 

  
 
 Investment returns remained low during 2019/20.   The expectation for interest rates 

within the treasury management strategy for 2019/20 was that Bank Rate would stay at 
0.75% during 2019/20 as it was not expected that the Monetary Policy Committee (MPC) 
would be able to deliver on an increase in Bank Rate until the Brexit issue was finally 
settled.  However, there was an expectation that Bank Rate would rise after that issue 
was settled, but would only rise to 1.0% during 2020.   

 
 Rising concerns over the possibility that the UK could leave the European Union (EU) at 

the end of October 2019 caused longer term investment rates to be on a falling trend for 
most of April to September. They then rose after the end of October deadline was rejected 
by the Commons but fell back again in January before recovering again after the 31 
January departure of the UK from the EU.  When the coronavirus outbreak hit the UK in 
February/March, rates initially plunged but then rose sharply back up again due to a 

Page 21



shortage of liquidity in financial markets.  As longer term rates were significantly higher 
than shorter term rates during the year, value was therefore sought by placing longer term 
investments where cash balances were sufficient to allow this.  

 
 While the Council has taken a cautious approach to investing, it is also fully appreciative 

of changes to regulatory requirements for financial institutions in terms of additional capital 
and liquidity that came about in the aftermath of the financial crisis. These requirements 
have provided a far stronger basis for financial institutions, with annual stress tests by 
regulators evidencing how institutions are now far more able to cope with extreme 
stressed market and economic conditions. 

 
Investment balances have been kept to a minimum through the agreed strategy of using 
reserves and balances to support internal borrowing, rather than borrowing externally from 
the financial markets. External borrowing would have incurred an additional cost, due to 
the differential between borrowing and investment rates as illustrated in the charts shown 
above and below. Such an approach has also provided benefits in terms of reducing the 
counterparty risk exposure, by having fewer investments placed in the financial markets. 
 

6.2 Borrowing strategy and control of interest rate risk 
 

During 2019/20, the Council maintained an under-borrowed position.  This meant that the 
capital borrowing need, (the Capital Financing Requirement), was not fully funded with 
loan debt, as cash supporting the Council’s reserves, balances and cash flow was used 
as an interim measure. All current loan debt specifically relates to the HRA and the 
General Fund has no loan debt. This strategy was prudent as investment returns were low 
and minimising counterparty risk on placing investments also needed to be considered.  
 
A cost of carry remained during the year on any new long-term borrowing that was not 
immediately used to finance capital expenditure, as it would have caused a temporary 
increase in cash balances; this would have incurred a revenue cost – the difference 
between (higher) borrowing costs and (lower) investment returns. 
 
The policy of avoiding new borrowing by running down spare cash balances, has served 
well over the last few years.  However, this was kept under review to avoid incurring 
higher borrowing costs in the future when this authority may not be able to avoid new 
borrowing to finance capital expenditure. 
 
Against this background and the risks within the economic forecast, caution was adopted 
with the treasury operations. The Section 151 Officer therefore monitored interest rates in 
financial markets and adopted a pragmatic strategy based upon the following principles to 
manage interest rate risks:  

 

 if it had been felt that there was a significant risk of a sharp FALL in long and short 
term rates, (e.g. due to a marked increase of risks around relapse into recession or 
of risks of deflation), then long term borrowings would have been postponed. 
 

 if it had been felt that there was a significant risk of a much sharper RISE in long 
and short term rates than initially expected, perhaps arising from an acceleration in 
the start date and in the rate of increase in central rates in the USA and UK, an 
increase in world economic activity or a sudden increase in inflation risks, then the 
portfolio position would have been re-appraised.  Most likely, fixed rate funding 
would have been drawn whilst interest rates were lower than they were projected 
to be in the next few years. 

 

Page 22



Interest rate forecasts expected only gradual rises in medium and longer term fixed 
borrowing rates during 2019/20 and the two subsequent financial years.  Variable, or 
short-term rates, were expected to be the cheaper form of borrowing over the period.   
 

  
 

  
 
 PWLB rates are based on, and are determined by, gilt (UK Government bonds) yields 

through H.M.Treasury determining a specified margin to add to gilt yields. There was 
much speculation during the second half of 2019 that bond markets were in a bubble 
which was driving bond prices up and yields down to historically very low levels. The 
context for that was heightened expectations that the US could have been heading for a 
recession in 2020, and a general background of a downturn in world economic growth, 
especially due to fears around the impact of the trade war between the US and China, 
together with inflation generally at low levels in most countries and expected to remain 
subdued; these conditions were conducive to very low bond yields.  While inflation 
targeting by the major central banks has been successful over the last 30 years in 
lowering inflation expectations, the real equilibrium rate for central rates has fallen 
considerably due to the high level of borrowing by consumers: this means that central 
banks do not need to raise rates as much now to have a major impact on consumer 
spending, inflation, etc. This has pulled down the overall level of interest rates and bond 
yields in financial markets over the last 30 years.  We have therefore seen, over the last 
year, many bond yields up to 10 years in the Eurozone turn negative. In addition, there 

Page 23



has, at times, been an inversion of bond yields in the US whereby 10 year yields have 
fallen below shorter term yields. In the past, this has been a precursor of a recession.  The 
other side of this coin is that bond prices are elevated as investors would be expected to 
be moving out of riskier assets i.e. shares, in anticipation of a downturn in corporate 
earnings and so selling out of equities.   

 
 Gilt yields were on a generally falling trend during the last year up until the coronavirus 

crisis hit western economies. Since then, gilt yields have fallen sharply to unprecedented 
lows as investors have panicked in selling shares in anticipation of impending recessions 
in western economies, and moved cash into safe haven assets i.e. government bonds. 
However, major western central banks also started quantitative easing purchases of 
government bonds which will act to maintain downward pressure on government bond 
yields at a time when there is going to be a huge and quick expansion of government 
expenditure financed by issuing government bonds; (this would normally cause bond 
yields to rise).  At the close of the day on 31 March, all gilt yields from 1 to 5 years were 
between 0.12 – 0.20% while even 25-year yields were at only 0.83%.   

 
 However, HM Treasury has imposed two changes in the margins over gilt yields for PWLB 

rates in 2019-20 without any prior warning; the first on 9 October 2019, added an 
additional 1% margin over gilts to all PWLB rates.  That increase was then partially 
reversed for some forms of borrowing on 11 March 2020, at the same time as the 
Government announced in the Budget a programme of increased spending on 
infrastructure expenditure. It also announced that there would be a consultation with local 
authorities on possibly further amending these margins; this was due to end on 4 June but 
has been extended. It is clear that the Treasury intends to put a stop to local authorities 
borrowing money from the PWLB to purchase commercial property if the aim is solely to 
generate an income stream. 

  
 Following the changes on 11 March 2020 in margins over gilt yields, the current situation 

is as follows: -  
 

• PWLB Standard Rate is gilt plus 200 basis points (G+200bps) 
• PWLB Certainty Rate is gilt plus 180 basis points (G+180bps) 
• PWLB HRA Standard Rate is gilt plus 100 basis points (G+100bps) 
• PWLB HRA Certainty Rate is gilt plus 80bps (G+80bps) 
• Local Infrastructure Rate is gilt plus 60bps (G+60bps) 

 
There is likely to be little upward movement in PWLB rates over the next two years as it 
will take national economies a prolonged period to recover all the momentum they will 
lose in the sharp recession that will be caused during the coronavirus shut down period. 
Inflation is also likely to be very low during this period and could even turn negative in 
some major western economies during 2020/21. 

 
7.0 BORROWING OUTTURN FOR 2019/20 
 
7.1 Due to investment concerns with both counterparty risk and low investment returns, no 

new borrowing was undertaken during the year. 
 
7.2 No rescheduling was done during the year as the average 1% differential between PWLB 

new borrowing rates and premature repayment rates made rescheduling unviable. 
 
7.3 The Council’s external borrowing from the PWLB at 31 March 2020 remained at 

£67.456m at a fixed rate of 3.48% and matures on 28 March 2062. 
 
 

Page 24



 
 
8.0 INVESTMENT OUTTURN FOR 2019/20 
 
8.1 Investment Policy – the Council’s investment policy is governed by MHCLG guidance, 

which has been implemented in the annual investment strategy approved by the Council 
on 27 February 2019.  This policy sets out the approach for choosing investment 
counterparties, and is based on credit ratings provided by the three main credit rating 
agencies, supplemented by additional market data (such as rating outlooks, credit default 
swaps, bank share prices etc. 

 
8.2 The investment activity during the year conformed to the approved strategy, and the 

Council had no liquidity difficulties. 
 
8.3 Resources – the Council’s cash balances comprise revenue and capital resources and 

cash flow monies.  The Council’s core cash resources comprised as follows: 
  

Balance Sheet Resources (£’000) 31 March 2019 31 March 2020 

Balances 18,928 22,265 

Earmarked reserves 8,902 8,213 

Major Repairs Reserve 4,684 3,586 

Capital Grants and Contributions 2,707 2,992 

Usable capital receipts 4,959 3,061 

Total 40,180 40,117 

 
8.4 The Council held average treasury investment balances of £42.7m which were mainly 

internally managed and achieved an average rate of return of 0.949% compared with the 
average 3 Month London Interbank Bid (LIBID) rate of 0.634%.  

 
The Council also held average non-treasury investment balances (excluding equity) of 
£3m. The Council has issued four loans totalling £3.23m to Welland Homes Limited, 
which is the Council’s wholly owned Housing Development Company. These are service 
loans (classified as long term debtors) and the Council receives interest of 3.5% on these 
loans which is payable on a quarterly basis. Total interest earned during the year was 
£107,761. 
 
The combined rate of return on all investments averaged 0.956%. 
 

8.5 Actual investment interest earned during 2019/20 was £516k which was broadly in line 
with the original budget of £520k. 

  

Page 25



9.0 THE ECONOMY AND INTEREST RATES (commentary provided by Link Asset 
Services - external treasury advisors) 

 
9.1 UK.  Brexit. The main issue in 2019 was the repeated battles in the House of Commons 

to agree on one way forward for the UK over the issue of Brexit. This resulted in the 
resignation of Teresa May as the leader of the Conservative Government and the election 
of Boris Johnson as the new leader, on a platform of taking the UK out of the EU on 31 
October 2019. The House of Commons duly frustrated that renewed effort and so a 
general election in December settled the matter once and for all by a decisive victory for 
the Conservative Party: that then enabled the UK to leave the EU on 31 January 2020. 
However, this still leaves much uncertainty as to whether there will be a reasonable trade 
deal achieved by the target deadline of the end of 2020. It is also unclear as to whether 
the coronavirus outbreak may yet impact on this deadline; however, the second and third 
rounds of negotiations have already had to be cancelled due to the virus. 

  
Economic growth in 2019 has been very volatile with quarter 1 unexpectedly strong at 
0.5%, quarter 2 dire at -0.2%, quarter 3 bouncing back up to +0.5% and quarter 4 flat at 
0.0%, +1.1% y/y.  2020 started with optimistic business surveys pointing to an upswing in 
growth after the ending of political uncertainty as a result of the decisive result of the 
general election in December settled the Brexit issue.  However, the three monthly Gross 
Domestic Product (GDP) statistics in January were disappointing, being stuck at 0.0% 
growth. Since then, the whole world has changed as a result of the coronavirus 
outbreak.  It now looks likely that the closedown of whole sections of the economy will 
result in a fall in GDP of at least 15% in quarter two. What is uncertain, however, is the 
extent of the damage that will be done to businesses by the end of the lock down period, 
when the end of the lock down will occur, whether there could be a second wave of the 
outbreak, how soon a vaccine will be created and then how quickly it can be administered 
to the population. This leaves huge uncertainties as to how quickly the economy will 
recover.   
  
After the Monetary Policy Committee raised Bank Rate from 0.5% to 0.75% in August 
2018, due to Brexit uncertainty the MPC chose not to act until March 2020; at this point it 
was abundantly clear that the coronavirus outbreak posed a huge threat to the economy 
of the UK.  Two emergency cuts in Bank Rate from 0.75% occurred in March, first to 
0.25% and then to 0.10%. These cuts were accompanied by an increase in quantitative 
easing (QE), essentially the purchases of gilts (mainly) by the Bank of England of 
£200bn.  The Government and the Bank were also very concerned to stop people losing 
their jobs during this lock down period. Accordingly, the Government introduced various 
schemes to subsidise both employed and self-employed jobs for three months while the 
country was locked down. It also put in place a raft of other measures to help businesses 
access loans from their banks, (with the Government providing guarantees to the banks 
against losses), to tide them over the lock down period when some firms may have little or 
no income. However, at the time of writing, this leaves open a question as to whether 
some firms will be solvent, even if they take out such loans, and some may also choose to 
close as there is, and will be, insufficient demand for their services. At the time of writing, 
this is a rapidly evolving situation so there may be further measures to come from the 
Bank and the Government in April and beyond. The measures to support jobs and 
businesses already taken by the Government will result in a huge increase in the annual 
budget deficit in 2020/21 from 2%, to nearly 11%.  The ratio of debt to GDP is also likely 
to increase from 80% to around 105%. In the Budget in March, the Government also 
announced a large increase in spending on infrastructure; this will also help the economy 
to recover once the lock down is ended.  Provided the coronavirus outbreak is brought 
under control relatively swiftly, and the lock down is eased, then it is hoped that there 
would be a sharp recovery, but one that would take a prolonged time to fully recover 
previous lost momentum. 

Page 26



 
Inflation has posed little concern for the MPC during the last year, being mainly between 
1.5 – 2.0%.  It is also not going to be an issue for the near future as the world economy 
will be heading into a recession which is already causing a glut in the supply of oil which 
has fallen sharply in price. Other prices will also be under downward pressure while wage 
inflation has also been on a downward path over the last half year and is likely to continue 
that trend in the current environment. While inflation could even turn negative in the 
Eurozone, this is currently not likely in the UK.  
 
Employment had been growing healthily through the last year but it is obviously going to 
be adversely affected by the Coronavirus during 2020/21. The good news over the last 
year is that wage inflation has been significantly higher than Consumer Price Index (CPI) 
inflation which means that consumer real spending power had been increasing and so will 
have provided support to GDP growth. However, Coronavirus restrictions will have had a 
major impact on retail during the start of 2020/21. 

 
9.2 USA.  Growth in quarter 1 of 2019 was strong at 3.1% but growth fell back to 2.0% in 

quarter 2 and 2.1% in quarters 3 and 4.  The slowdown in economic growth resulted in the 
Fed cutting rates from 2.25-2.50% by 0.25% in each of July, September and October. 
Once coronavirus started to impact the US in a big way, the Fed took decisive action by 
cutting rates twice by 0.50%, and then 1.00%, in March, all the way down to 0.00 – 0.25%. 
Near the end of March, Congress agreed a $2trn stimulus package (worth about 10% of 
GDP) and new lending facilities announced by the Fed which could channel up to $6trn in 
temporary financing to consumers and firms over the coming months. Nearly half of the 
first figure is made up of permanent fiscal transfers to households and firms, including 
cash payments of $1,200 to individuals.  

 
 The loans for small businesses, which convert into grants if firms use them to maintain 

their payroll, will cost $367bn and 100% of the cost of lost wages for four months will also 
be covered. In addition there will be $500bn of funding from the Treasury’s Exchange 
Stabilization Fund which will provide loans for hard-hit industries, including $50bn for 
airlines. 

 
However, all this will not stop the US falling into a sharp recession in quarter 2 of 2020. 

 
9.3 EUROZONE.  The annual rate of GDP growth has been steadily falling, from 1.8% in 

2018 to only 0.9% y/y in quarter 4 in 2019.  The European Central Bank (ECB) ended its 
programme of quantitative easing purchases of debt in December 2018, which meant that 
the central banks in the US, UK and EU had all ended the phase of post financial crisis 
expansion of liquidity supporting world financial markets by purchases of debt.  However, 
the downturn in Eurozone (EZ) growth, together with inflation falling well under the upper 
limit of its target range of 0 to 2%, (but it aims to keep it near to 2%), prompted the ECB to 
take new measures to stimulate growth.  At its March 2019 meeting it announced a third 
round of Targeted Longer-Term Refinancing Operations (TLTROs); this provided banks 
with cheap two year maturity borrowing every three months from September 2019 until 
March 2021. However, since then, the downturn in EZ and world growth has gathered 
momentum so at its meeting in September 2019, it cut its deposit rate further into negative 
territory, from -0.4% to -0.5% and announced a resumption of quantitative easing 
purchases of debt to start in November at €20bn per month, a relatively small amount, 
plus more TLTRO measures. Once coronavirus started having a major impact in Europe, 
the ECB took action in March 2020 to expand its QE operations and other measures to 
help promote expansion of credit and economic growth. What is currently missing is a 
coordinated EU response of fiscal action by all national governments to protect jobs, 
support businesses directly and promote economic growth by expanding government 
expenditure on e.g. infrastructure; action is therefore likely to be patchy. 

Page 27



 
9.4 CHINA. Economic growth has been weakening over successive years, despite repeated 

rounds of central bank stimulus; medium-term risks have also been increasing. The major 
feature of 2019 was the trade war with the US.  However, this has been eclipsed by being 
the first country to be hit by the coronavirus outbreak; this resulted in a lock down of the 
country and a major contraction of economic activity in February-March 2020.  While it 
appears that China has put a lid on the virus by the end of March, these are still early 
days to be confident and it is clear that the economy is going to take some time to recover 
its previous rate of growth.  Ongoing economic issues remain, in needing to make major 
progress to eliminate excess industrial capacity and to switch investment from property 
construction and infrastructure to consumer goods production. It also needs to address 
the level of non-performing loans in the banking and credit systems. 

 
9.5 JAPAN - has been struggling to stimulate consistent significant GDP growth and to get 

inflation up to its target of 2%, despite huge monetary and fiscal stimulus. It is also making 
little progress on fundamental reform of the economy. It appears to have missed much of 
the domestic impact from coronavirus in 2019/20 but the virus is at an early stage there. 

 
9.6 WORLD GROWTH.  The trade war between the US and China on tariffs was a major 

concern to financial markets and was depressing worldwide growth during 2019, as any 
downturn in China would spill over into impacting countries supplying raw materials to 
China. Concerns were particularly focused on the synchronised general weakening of 
growth in the major economies of the world. These concerns resulted in government bond 
yields in the developed world falling significantly during 2019. In 2020, coronavirus is the 
big issue which is going to sweep around the world and have a major impact in causing a 
world recession in growth in 2020. 
 

10.0 OPTIONS 
 
10.1 There are no alternative options presented. 
 
11.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION 
 
11.1 To comply with the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy’s Code of 

Practice on Treasury Management 2017. 
 
12.0 EXPECTED BENEFITS 
 
12.1 The report provides Members with a summary of the economy, the effect it has had on 

financial markets and the treasury activity during 2019/20. The report requires scrutiny 
prior to submitting to Council for approval. 

 
13.0 IMPLICATIONS 
 
13.1 Constitution & Legal 
 
13.1.1 This Council is required by regulations issued under the Local Government Act 2003 to 

produce an annual treasury management review of activities and the actual prudential and 
treasury indicators for 2019/20. This report meets the requirements of both the CIPFA 
Code of Practice on Treasury Management and the CIPFA Prudential Code for Capital 
Finance in Local Authorities. 

 
13.1.2 The Council’s financial strategy, capital financing and borrowing all form part of the Policy 

Framework and are therefore non-executive matters that fall within the remit of the full 
Council. 

Page 28



 
13.2 Financial  
 
13.2.1 The report provides details of the treasury activity for the 2019/20 financial year to inform 

members on performance and to highlight any changes in the year. 
 
13.2.2 Total interest received was £516k with £355k to the General Fund and £161k to the 

Housing Revenue Account. This was broadly in line with budget. 
 
13.3 Risk Management  
 
13.3.1  The Council’s investment policy has regard to the MHCLG Guidance on Local 

Government Investments (“the Guidance”) and the revised CIPFA Treasury Management 
in Public Services Code of Practice and Cross Sectoral Guidance Notes (“the CIPFA TM 
Code”). The Council’s investment priorities are security first, liquidity second, then return. 

 
14.0   WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED 
 
14.1    Due to budgetary considerations all wards are affected. 
 
15.0   ACRONYMS  
 
15.1 PSPS – Public Sector Partnership Services Ltd 
15.2 CIPFA – Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy 
15.3 HRA – Housing Revenue Account 
15.4 CFR – Capital Financing Requirement 
15.5 PWLB – Public Works Loan Board 
15.6 MRP – Minimum Revenue Provision 
15.7 VRP – Voluntary Revenue Provision 
15.8  MHCLG – Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government 
15.9 EU – European Union 
15.10 GDP – Gross Domestic Product 
15.11 MPC – Monetary Policy Committee 
15.12 LIBID – London Interbank Bid Rate 
15.13 QE - Quantitative Easing 
15.13 CPI – Consumer Price Index 
15.14 ECB – European Central Bank 
15.15 EZ – Eurozone 
15.16 TLTRO - Targeted Longer-Term Refinancing Operations 

Background papers: - SHDC Treasury Management Strategy Statement 2019/20  

Lead Contact Officer 
Name and Post:   Sean Howsam – Treasury and Investment Manager (PSPSL) 
Telephone Number:  01507 613248 
Email:     Sean.Howsam@pspsl.co.uk 
 
Key Decision: No  
 
Exempt Decision: No 
 
This report refers to a Mandatory Service 
 
Appendices attached to this report:  None 

Page 29



This page is intentionally left blank



SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 

Report of: Executive Manager - Governance (Deputy Monitoring Officer) – Mark Stinson

  

To: Governance and Audit Committee - Thursday, 30 July 2020  

 

(Author: Christine Morgan Democratic Services Officer) 

 

Subject Governance and Audit Committee Work Programme 

 

Purpose: To set out the Work Programme of the Governance and Audit Committee 

 

Recommendation: 
 
That the Committee gives consideration to the content of this report and identifies any issues for 
discussion 
 

 

1.0 BACKGROUND 
 
1.1 The Governance and Audit Committee regularly considers a variety of reports from Internal 

Audit, External Audit and the Section 151 Officer.  
 

1.2 Many of these reports are considered at regular intervals, the majority being annually, half-
yearly or quarterly. 

 
1.3 In addition to these reports, the Committee also considers issues on an ad-hoc basis with 

some reports arising from consideration of items at previous meetings. 
 
1.4 Attached at Appendix A to this report is the Work Programme for the Governance and Audit 

Committee.  It lays out the meeting dates for the 2020/21 municipal year. Alongside each of 
these meeting dates are issues considered by the Committee on a regular basis together 
with the author of the report, its purpose and whether it is mandatory, and the frequency 
with which it is considered. 
 

1.5 It has been agreed that this Work Programme be a regular item for consideration on the 

 Committee’s agenda, thus creating a formal document laying out the work of the 

 Committee in a clear, structured and organised way. 

1.6 The attached document contains items considered on a regular basis, and also any ad 

 hoc issues as and when they arise, for example, issues raised at a meeting to be 

 covered at a future meeting, and any one-off issues.  

2.0 OPTIONS 

2.1 To note and consider the current status of the Work Programme.  
 

2.2 To do nothing. 
 

3.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION 

3.1 To allow Committee members to feed into the Work Programme on a regular basis, to 
ensure that it stays relevant and up to date. 

Page 31

Agenda Item 5.



 

4.0 EXPECTED BENEFITS 

4.1 The Work Programme is a formal document laying out the work of the Committee in a 
clear, structured and organised way, thus providing members with up to date and relevant 
information. 

 

5.0 IMPLICATIONS 

5.1  Constitution & Legal 
 

5.1.1 Constitutional and Legal implications have been considered and in the opinion of the 

author, there are none arising out of this report.   However, the Work Programme should 

assist in providing a clear programme of work for the Governance and Audit Committee in 

line with the requirements laid out in the Council’s Constitution. 

5.2  Risk Management  
 

5.2.1 Risk Management implications have been considered and in the opinion of the author, 

 there are none.  However, one of the roles of the Governance and Audit Committee is to 

 monitor the effective development and operation of risk management and corporate 

 governance in the Council, and the Work Programme should assist in keeping track of 

 risk issues. 

6.0 WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED 

6.1 No wards or communities will be affected by this post. 
 

7.0 ACRONYMS  

7.1 None. 
 

Background papers:- None 

 

Lead Contact Officer 

Name and Post: Christine Morgan Democratic Services Officer 

Telephone Number 01775 764454 

Email: cmorgan@sholland.gov.uk 

 

Key Decision: No 

Exempt Decision: No 

 

This report refers to a Mandatory Service 

Appendices attached to this report:  

Appendix A Work Programme for the Governance and Audit Committee 

Page 32



APPENDIX A 
 

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT – CALENDAR OF WORK PROGRAMME ITEMS 2020/21 
 
 

Date of Meeting Agenda item Author Purpose and whether mandatory Frequency 
 

30 July 2020 
 

Internal Audit – Audit Plan Progress 
Report 2019-20 

Internal Audit  To update Committee on progress of 
the plan. 
Not mandatory, but part of 
Governance role. 
 

To each 
meeting 

 Follow up report on Internal Audit 
recommendations 

Internal Audit Not mandatory, but part of 
Governance role. 
 

To each 
meeting 
 

 Annual Report and Opinion (report on the 
past year) 2019-20 

Internal Audit Internal Audit opinion to support draft 
Annual Governance Statement 
Mandatory 

Annual 
 
 
 

 Annual Treasury Management Review Section 151 Officer To comply with Treasury 
Management Strategy. 
Mandatory 
 

Annual 

September 2020 
Date to be 
confirmed 
Training session – 
one item only  
 

Unaudited financial statements 2019/20 
including Narrative Report and Annual 
Governance Statement 

Section 151 Officer To approve financial statements prior 
to release to External Audit. 
Mandatory 

Annual 
 
 
 

12 November 2020 ISA 260 Report 19/20 (previously known 
as Annual Governance report); and 
External Audit Programme report and 
unaudited Statement of Accounts 
2019/20 
 

External Audit 
(Ernst & Young) 

Mandatory report to those charged 
with Governance 

Annual 
 
 

P
age 33



Date of Meeting Agenda item Author Purpose and whether mandatory Frequency 
 

 Internal Audit – Audit Plan Progress 
Report 2020-21 

Internal Audit To update Committee on progress of 
the plan. 
Not mandatory, but part of 
Governance role. 

To each 
meeting. 
 
 
 

 Follow up report on Internal Audit 
recommendations 

Internal Audit Not mandatory, but part of 
Governance role. 

To each 
meeting. 
 

 Governance and Audit Committee Self 
Assessment 

Internal Audit For confirmation. 
Good practice. 

Annual 
 
 

 Approval of Annual Governance 
Statement, for inclusion with the 
Council’s published financial statements 
and approval of the audited 19/20 
financial statements. 

Section 151 Officer Mandatory – approval required Annual 

 Mid Term Treasury Report 20/21 Section 151 Officer To comply with Treasury 
Management Strategy reporting 
requirements 
 

Half-yearly 

 Q2 2020-21 Risk Report Ross Bangs/Corey 
Gooch 

Part of Governance role – not 
mandatory 
 

To each 
meeting 

14 January 2021 Grant Claims 19/20 External Audit 
(KPMG) 

External Audit Certification of Grant 
Claims – Mandatory Approval 

Annual 

 SHDC Annual Audit Letter 2019/20 
 

External Audit 
(Ernst & Young) 
 

Mandatory/Consultation requirement. 
To approve audit fees. 
 

Annual 

 Internal Audit – Audit Plan Progress 
Report 2020-21 

Internal Audit To update Committee on progress of 
the plan. 
Not mandatory but part of 
Governance role. 
 

To each 
meeting 

P
age 34



Date of Meeting Agenda item Author Purpose and whether mandatory Frequency 
 

 Follow up report on Internal Audit 
recommendations 

Internal Audit Not mandatory, but part of 
Governance role. 
 

To each 
meeting. 

 Treasury Management Strategy 
Statement, Mnimum Revenue Provision 
Policy Statement and Annual Investment 
Strategy 2021/22 

Section 151 Officer Mandatory requirement. 
To review Treasury Managmenet 
Strategy and approve Prudential 
Indicators. 
 

Annual 

11 March 2021 Audit Plan 
 

External Audit 
(Ernst & Young) 
 

External Audit Plan – Mandatory 
Approval 
 

Annual 

 Internal Audit – Audit Plan Progress 
Report 2019-20 

Internal Audit  To update Committee on progress of 
the plan. 
Not mandatory, but part of 
Governance role. 
 

To each 
meeting 

 Strategic and Annual Internal Audit Plan 
2021/22 

Internal Audit 
 

Annual Internal Audit Workplan - 
Mandatory approval 
 

Annual 

 Follow up report on Internal Audit 
recommendations 

Internal Audit Not mandatory, but part of 
Governance role. 
 

To each 
meeting 
 

 Financial Statements 2020/21 
Accounting Policies  
 

Section 151 Officer 
 

Not mandatory, but good practice. Annual 
 

 Q4 2020-21 Risk Report  Ross Bangs/Corey 
Gooch 

Part of Governance role – not 
mandatory 
 

To each 
meeting 

 Training requirements – consideration to 
be given training requirements for the 
Committee 
 

   

20 May 2021     

P
age 35



 
The following item to be added to the Committee’s Work Programme on an ad hoc basis, where there is information to report: 
 

 The Head of Internal Audit to present a performance report detailing levels and types of fraud.   
 

 External Audit (Ernst & Young) – Local Government Audit Committee Briefings are produced quarterly.  Where its publication coincides 
with a meeting, it will be added to the agenda for that meeting.  If not, it will be circulated outside of the meeting to members of the 
Committee. 

P
age 36



SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
Report of: Internal Audit Manager for South Holland DC 
 
To:    Governance and Audit Committee, 30 July 2020 
 
Author:  Faye Haywood, Internal Audit Manager 
 
Subject: Follow Up Report on Internal Audit Recommendations 
 
Purpose: This report provides members with the position on the progress made by 

management in implementing agreed Internal Audit recommendations as at 31 
March 2020 

 

 
Recommendation(s):  
 
1) That members note the contents of the report. 
 

 
1.0 BACKGROUND 
 
1.1 The Governance and Audit Committee receives an update on management’s 

implementation of agreed audit recommendations. This report forms part of the overall 
reporting requirements to assist the Council in discharging the responsibilities in relation to 
its Internal Audit Service. 

1.2 The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards require the Chief Audit Executive to establish a 
process to monitor and follow up management actions to ensure that they have been 
effectively implemented or that senior management have accepted the risk of not taking 
action.  

1.3 To comply with the above this report includes the status of agreed actions. 

 
2.0  CURRENT PROGRESS 
 

2.1 The Governance and Audit Committee are asked to receive and note the current position in 
relation to the completion of agreed audit recommendations. 

 
3.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION 
 
3.1 The Governance and Audit Committee are requested to receive and note the Follow Up 

Report on the implementation of Internal Audit recommendations.  In doing so, the 
Committee is ensuring that it is kept up to date and informed as to the extent to which 
management has progressed Internal Audit recommendations as at 31 March 2020. 
 

4.0 IMPLICATIONS 
 
4.1 Corporate Priorities 
 
4.1.1 Internal Audit helps to ensure that the service areas reviewed are working towards the 

efficient and effective delivery of the Council’s corporate priorities. 
 
 

Page 37

Agenda Item 6.



 
 
4.2 Risk Management  
 
4.2.1 Failure to implement or improve internal controls may lead to the risks associated with 

those controls materialising. 
 

Background papers: - None 

 

Lead Contact Officer 
Name and Post: Faye Haywood Internal Audit Manager 
Telephone Number: 01508 533873 
Email: efhaywood@s-norfolk.gov.uk 
 
Director / Officer who will be attending the Meeting Faye Haywood 
 
Key Decision: No 
 
Exempt Decision: No 
 
Appendices attached to this report:  Follow Up Report on Internal Audit Recommendations 
 

 

Page 38



Page 1 of 10 

 

Eastern Internal Audit Services 

 

 
SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 

Follow Up Report on Internal Audit Recommendations 

Period Covered: 2 March 2020 to 31 March 2020 

Responsible Officer: Emma Hodds – Head of Internal Audit for South Holland DC 

CONTENTS 

1. INTRODUCTION           2 

2. FOLLOW UP PROCESS         2 

3.  STATUS OF RECOMMENDATIONS        2 

APPENDIX 1 – SUMMARY POSITION All Internal Audit Recommendations  4 

APPENDIX 2 OUTSTANDING INTERNAL AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS – 2017/18 5 

APPENDIX 3 OUTSTANDING INTERNAL AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS - 2018/19       6 
 
APPENDIX 4 OUTSTANDING INTERNAL AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS -  2019/20      8   
 

 

  

Page 39



Page 2 of 10 

 

1. INTRODUCTION 

1.1 This report is being issued to assist the Authority in discharging its responsibilities in relation 
to the internal audit activity. 

1.2 The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards also require the Chief Audit Executive to 
establish a process to monitor and follow up management actions to ensure that they have 
been effectively implemented or that senior management have accepted the risk of not 
taking action. The frequency of reporting and the specific content are for the Authority to 
determine. 

1.3 To comply with the above this report includes: 

 The status of agreed actions.  

2. FOLLOW UP PROCESS  

 Eastern Internal Audit Services Recommendations  

2.1 As a result of audit recommendations raised by TIAA Ltd, management agree action to 
ensure implementation within a specific timeframe and by a responsible officer.  

2.2 EIAS recommendations are subsequently uploaded on to the Council’s performance 
management system – Pentana – with this alerting management to update progress in 
advance of the due date through email alerts. Management action to date is then input with 
internal audit then either verifying the evidence provided and closing the recommendation or 
agreeing to the extension date provided. 

2.3 Escalation is also in place to deal with non-responses or recommendations which have been 
overdue for a long time through the Performance, Risk and Audit Board and through the 
Finance Board as required due to the statutory requirements of the Section 151 Officer to 
ensure that appropriate risk mitigation action is being taken. Ultimately further escalation is 
through the Executive Management Team and then the Committee. 

Public Sector Partnership Services (PSPS) Audit Recommendations 

2.4 Audit Lincolnshire (formerly East Lindsey District Council) undertake the internal audit 
reviews of the Public Sector Partnership Services key finance functions. Recommendations 
raised are then subsequently monitored by Audit Lincolnshire, with updates provided to the 
Head of Internal Audit for South Holland on a quarterly basis. These recommendations are 
recorded on Pentana, which enables greater oversight by both PSPS and South Holland 
management.  

3.  STATUS OF RECOMMENDATIONS 

3.1 Appendix 1 to this report shows the details of the progress made to date in relation to the 
implementation of all agreed internal audit recommendations and reflects the year in which 
the audit was undertaken to enable the Committee to easily identify old outstanding 
recommendations. The table also identifies outstanding recommendations that have 
previously been reported to this Committee and then those which have become outstanding 
during this period.  

 

 

Page 40



Page 3 of 10 

 

 

3.2 In 2017/18 a total of 85 recommendations were raised by both internal audit providers.  

  Of those, 81 have been implemented by management, four are outstanding (one urgent and 
three important).  

3.3 The management responses in relation to the outstanding urgent and important outstanding 
recommendations can be seen at Appendix 2 of the report.  

Number raised  85  

Complete 81 95% 

Outstanding 4 5% 

3.4 In 2018/19 a total of 76 recommendations were raised by both internal audit providers. Of 
these 62 have been completed and 14 (two urgent, seven important and five needs 
attention) are overdue.  

Number raised  76  

Complete 62 82% 

Outstanding 14 18% 

3.5  The management responses in relation to the outstanding important recommendations can 
be seen at Appendix 3 of the report. 

3.6 In 2019/20 a total of 71 recommendations have been agreed so far. Of these 39 have been 
completed, 9 are outstanding (two urgent, three important and four needs attention). A total 
of 23 are not yet due.  

Number raised  71  

Complete 39 55% 

Outstanding 9 13% 

Not yet due 23 32% 

 

Page 41



Page 4 of 10 

 

APPENDIX 1 – SUMMARY POSITION All Internal Audit Recommendations 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 42



Page 5 of 10 

 

 

APPENDIX 2 OUTSTANDING INTERNAL AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS – 2017/18 

Audit Area Responsible 
Officer 

Recommendations Priority Status 
Description 

Original 
Date  

Revised 
Date  

Latest Note 

SH1804 Welland 
Homes 

Strategic Housing 
Manager – 
Matthew Hogan 

To devise a service level 
agreement to formally record the 
services provided by the Council to 
Welland Homes, and to the terms 
on which those services are 
provided, including service 
charges. 

Important Outstanding 31-Mar-18 30/10/2020 At Council in December 2019, it was agreed that 
a Development Strategy be prepared which will 
identify the drivers for new housing delivery, 
including how we provide services to Welland 
Homes.  Officers are considering the route for 
the formation of the Development Strategy which 
is likely to require some external resource.  In the 
meantime, a draft SLA document has been 
prepared by the Welland Homes project 
team.  The next stage is for Finance Officers to 
propose a charging schedule to be included in 
the document.  Thereafter the document will be 
considered by EMT and the Welland Homes 
board. 
 

SH1809 Asset 
Management 

Property Services 
Manager 

A programmed review  of all leases 
is to be undertaken, this will 
include; Lease agreements be 
entered into for existing tenants, 
Lease agreements be entered into 
for new tenants and a review of 
rent increments given to long term 
tenants on or before the expiration 
of their current lease period. 

Urgent Outstanding  21-Jun-18 30/09/2020 This work was originally set to be complete by 
the proposed date. However, the outstanding 
leases have currently been placed on hold due to 
the Covid19 situation. A report has been drafted 
for the consideration of Gold command as 
increased rents could impact on local 
businesses. It is difficult to place a revised 
timescale on this action due to the unknown 
entity brought about by Covid19.  

SH1809 Asset 
Management 

Housing Landlord 
Services 
Manager – Jason 
King  

The Letting Policy be updated to 
reflect current practices, such as 
not obtaining deposits from tenants 
in the industrial units and how end 
of tenancy checks will take account 
of any damages incurred by the 
tenant. 
 

Important Outstanding  21-Jun-18 30/09/2020 The policy was listed for approval at the revised 
Democratic meetings due to take place in March 
and April. Due to the on-going situation with 
Covid19 meetings have been cancelled and 
therefore the policy has not been approved. The 
Policy will be on the agenda for revised digital 
meetings in due course. An extension is 
therefore requested to allow sufficient time for 
the policy to be considered.  
 

Financial Audits PSPS 

PFINAUD001d 
Accounts Payable 
Key Controls 

Head of Finance Staff be reminded to ensure their 
entry on the matrix remains up to 
date. Annual review of the matrix 
entries be undertaken 

Important 
 

Outstanding  31-Mar-19 30/10/2020 The New Finance System is still in the 
implementation phase. Testing and build has 
accommodated the need for a segregation of 
duties. The authorisation matrix for SHDC has 
been updated in Q4 of 19/20. It is suggested that 
the implementation of this control is revised to 
Oct 2020, to include in user guidance the need to 

P
age 43



Page 6 of 10 

 

Audit Area Responsible 
Officer 

Recommendations Priority Status 
Description 

Original 
Date  

Revised 
Date  

Latest Note 

observe a segregation of duties in addition to the 
control enforced by the new system. 

APPENDIX 3 OUTSTANDING INTERNAL AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS – 2018/19 

Audit Area Responsible Officer Recommendations Priority Status 
Description 

Original Date  Revised 
Date  

Latest Note 

SH1915 Housing 
Needs 

Housing Landlord 
Services Manager 

A procedure be developed and 
implemented to support the 
administration and control of 
homeless assistance grants. 

Important Outstanding  30/09/2019 30/09/2020 The policy was listed for approval at the 
revised Democratic meetings due to take place 
in March and April. Due to the on-going 
situation with Covid19 meetings have been 
cancelled and therefore the policy has not 
been approved. The Policy will be on the 
agenda for revised digital meetings in due 
course. An extension is therefore requested to 
allow sufficient time for the policy to be 
considered.  
 
 

SH1915 Housing 
Needs 

Housing Landlord 
Services Manager 

In order to comply with the 
requirements of the Council’s 
Common Housing Allocations 
Policy (see recommendation 1), 
the following information needs to 
be clearly evident for each 
application: 
Audit trail demonstrating requisite 
reassessments have been applied 
as and when due; 
Confirmation that each application 
has been subject to peer review; 
Evidence supporting the 
assessment of the applicant’s 
priority rating; and 
Evidence to confirm the applicant 
has been informed of the outcome 
of their housing allocation. 
Refer also to recommendation 1 
bullet points 1 and 5. 
 
 

Important Outstanding  31/08/2019 31/07/2020 Progress has been temporarily stalled due to a 
system issue which is present in both the test 
and live environment. A Northgate consultancy 
day has been secured for the 3 June 2020 to 
help resolve this issue. Due to the current 
demand for Northgate services there have 
been some additional delay with getting this 
issue resolved. A further revised date is 
suggested to allow for any further issues which 
may arise. 

Financial Audits PSPS 

P
age 44



Page 7 of 10 

 

Audit Area Responsible Officer Recommendations Priority Status 
Description 

Original Date  Revised 
Date  

Latest Note 

PFINACT037S 
Housing Rents 

Head of Financial 
Services PSPS 

Integration of the Northgate 
system has been included within 
the implementation plan for 
consideration in the new system. 
Tenders are being evaluated in 
May 2019 however confirmation 
as to whether this functionality is 
possible may not be determined 

Important Outstanding 02/03/2020 30/10/2020 The implementation phase for U4BW is still 
underway. The interface have been reviewed 
to optimise the exchange of data via interface. 
Reconciliation controls will be built and 
introduced as part of the transition to go live. 
Expected to be October 2020. 
 

PFINACT080S 
Financial Services 
Key Controls 

Head of Financial 
Services PSPS 

Evaluation of limits and 
restrictions functionality to the 
extent required in the specification 
as part of procurement, and then 
implementation of new Finance 
system 

Urgent Outstanding 01/04/2020 30/10/2020 The development and implementation of the 
new finance system U4BW will establish a set 
of limits around authorisation approval levels 
and assign specific approval rights across the 
system as set out in the Procure to Pay 
Workbook which has been uploaded for 
information.  
The workbook has been viewed and assessed 
by IA colleagues as satisfying those 
requirements.  However formal sign off will only 
be completed following the successful System 
Testing.  
 

PFINACT082S  
Financial Services 
Key Controls  

Head of Financial 
Services PSPS 

Evaluation of segregation of roles 
functionality to the extent required 
in the specification as part of 
procurement process 

Urgent  Outstanding 01/04/2020 30/10/2020 The development and implementation of the 
new finance system U4BW will establish a set 
of limits around authorisation approval levels 
and assign specific approval rights across the 
system as set out in the Sales to Cash 
Workbook which has been uploaded for 
information.  
 
The workbook has been viewed and assessed 
by IA colleagues as satisfying those 
requirements.  However formal sign off will only 
be completed following the successful System 
Testing.  
 

PFINACT077S 
Financial Services 
Key Controls 

Head of Financial 
Services PSPS 

Purchase Order exemption list be 
reviewed and updated where 
agreed 
 

Important Outstanding  31/07/2019 30/10/2020 Reports are regularly reported to the S151 
officers. The implementation of the new system 
is expected in Oct 2020. It has been agreed to 
follow a principal of no po, no pay and this will 
be incorporated into user guidance as part of 
transition to Go Live. 
 

P
age 45



Page 8 of 10 

 

Audit Area Responsible Officer Recommendations Priority Status 
Description 

Original Date  Revised 
Date  

Latest Note 

PFINACT084S 
Financial Services 
Key Controls  

Head of Financial 
Services PSPS 

Evaluation of embedded payment 
terms functionality to the extent 
required in the specification as 
part of procurement, and then 
implementation of new Finance 
system.  
 

Important Outstanding 01/04/2020 30/10/2020 Implementation of the new Finance system is 
now scheduled to go live Mid October 2020 
and verification will be undertaken then.  

PFINACT086S 
Financial Services 
Key Controls 

Head of Financial 
Services PSPS 

New processes to be defined on 
implementation of new Finance 
system for AR reconciliations. 

Important Outstanding  01/04/2020 30/10/2020 Implementation of the new Finance system is 
now scheduled to go live Mid October 
2020.New processes will be implemented then. 

PFINACT087S 
Financial Services 
Key Controls 

Head of Financial 
Services 

Training will be incorporated into 
the budget planning timetable for 
2020/21 and delivered in Q2 of 
2019/20. 

Important Outstanding 31/03/2020 31/10/2020 The Budget Profiling by Budget Managers 
at SHDC will be completed when budgets are 
finalised and agreed prior to loading budget 
onto ledger system.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 46



Page 9 of 10 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

APPENDIX 4 OUTSTANDING INTERNAL AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS – 2019/20 

Audit Area Responsible 
Officer 

Recommendations Priority Status 
Description 

Original 
Date  

Revised 
Date  

Latest Note 

SH2002 
Private Sector 
Housing 

Housing Landlord 
Services Manager  

Recommendation 1. The Council 
develops an overarching Empty 
Homes Strategy that includes links 
to the Private Sector Housing 
Enforcement Policy. 

Urgent Outstanding 30/03/2020 30/09/2020 The strategy was listed for approval at the 
revised Democratic meetings due to take place 
in March and April. Due to the on-going situation 
with Covid19 meetings have been cancelled and 
therefore the policy has not been approved. The 
Policy will be on the agenda for revised digital 
meetings in due course. An extension is 
therefore requested to allow sufficient time for 
the policy to be considered.  
 

SH2002 
Private Sector 
Housing 

Housing Landlord 
Services Manager 

Recommendation 5.   
Complete review of all the PSH 
budgets be undertaken to ensure 
a baseline is agreed. Thereafter, 
monthly or quarterly reconciliations 
to be completed between PSH 
records and those within the 
finance system for all DFG activity; 
both Private and Public, which is 
supported by extracts from the 
supporting spreadsheets 
(Northgate Assure when available) 
and prints from the finance system 
and with evidence that any 
discrepancies have been 
investigated and explained. The 
reconciliation to be subject to 
independent review with the 
signature and date of the preparer 
and reviewer evident. 
 

Urgent Outstanding 30/03/2020 30/09/2020 The year-end position for 18/19 has now been 
agreed with relevant accruals. The budgets for 
19/20 are now being managed and have 
essentially reset the position for the current 
financial year. Due to the current situation with 
Covid19, Private Sector Housing activity has 
been limited with little or no DFG activity taking 
place. Work with the Assure system is 
progressing to ensure that the team is well 
placed to take this way forward. Once work in 
this area progresses again relevant sign offs can 
be evidenced.   

SH2002 Housing Landlord Recommendation 21  Important Outstanding 31/03/2020 30/09/2020 The policy was listed for approval at the revised 

P
age 47



Page 10 of 10 

 

Audit Area Responsible 
Officer 

Recommendations Priority Status 
Description 

Original 
Date  

Revised 
Date  

Latest Note 

Private Sector 
Housing  
 

Services Manager All Decent Homes Grants / Loans 
to be approved by a senior 
member of staff rather than a peer. 
Where discretion is used, i.e. 
where a grant is issued instead of 
a loan where the payment is 
£1,000 and above, this reason 
should be formally documented for 
the approving officer to consider. 
Such requirements should also be 
referred to in written guidance. 
 

Democratic meetings due to take place in March 
and April. Due to the on-going situation with 
Covid19 meetings have been cancelled and 
therefore the policy has not been approved. The 
Policy will be on the agenda for revised digital 
meetings in due course. An extension is 
therefore requested to allow sufficient time for 
the policy to be considered.  
 
 
 
 
 

SH2002 
Private Sector 
Housing 

Housing Landlord 
Services Manager 

Recommendation 22  
The Council to undertake annual 
checks of householders insurance 
for those in receipt of a Decent 
Homes Assistant Loan and that 
this requirement be referred to in 
the written procedure for 
administering Decent Homes 
Assistant Loans. 
 
 

Important Outstanding 30/03/2020 30/09/2020 The policy was listed for approval at the revised 
Democratic meetings due to take place in March 
and April. Due to the on-going situation with 
Covid19 meetings have been cancelled and 
therefore the policy has not been approved. The 
Policy will be on the agenda for revised digital 
meetings in due course. An extension is 
therefore requested to allow sufficient time for 
the policy to be considered.  
 

SH2002 
Private Sector 
Housing 

Housing Landlord 
Services Manager  

Recommendation 17  
The Community Housing Renewal 
Policy be reviewed and updated 
where applicable. The Decent 
Homes Assistance Loans 
Procedure be reviewed and 
updated and to include procedures 
for assessing and processing 
Decent Homes Assistance Grants, 
including delegated levels for 
discretion to be applied between 
awarding a grant in excess of 
£999, where it would ordinarily 
qualify for a loan. 
 

Important Outstanding 30/03/2020 30/09/2020 The policy was listed for approval at the revised 
Democratic meetings due to take place in March 
and April. Due to the on-going situation with 
Covid19 meetings have been cancelled and 
therefore the policy has not been approved. The 
Policy will be on the agenda for revised digital 
meetings in due course. An extension is 
therefore requested to allow sufficient time for 
the policy to be considered.  
 

 
 

P
age 48



SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
Report of: Head of Internal Audit  
 
To:    Governance and Audit Committee 30 July 2020 
 
Author:  Emma Hodds, Head of Internal Audit  
 
Subject: Annual Report and Opinion 2019/20 
 
Purpose: This report provides the Council with an Annual Report and Opinion for 

2019/20, drawing upon the outcomes of Internal Audit work performed over 
the course of the year. The report also concludes on the Effectiveness of 
Internal Audit.  

 
   

 
Recommendation(s):  
 
1) Receive and approve the contents of the Annual Report and Opinion of the Head of 

Internal Audit. 
 
2) Note that a Reasonable audit opinion has been given in relation to governance, risk 

management and control for the year ended 31 March 2020. 
 
3) Note that the opinions expressed together with significant matters arising from internal 

audit work and contained within this report should be given due consideration, when 
developing and reviewing the Council’s Annual Governance Statement for 2019/20. 

 
4) Note the conclusions of the Review of the Effectiveness of Internal Audit. 

 
1.0 BACKGROUND 
 

1.1 In line with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards, which came into force from 1 April 
2013; an annual opinion should be generated which concludes on the overall adequacy and 
effectiveness of the organisation’s framework of governance, risk management and control; 

 A summary of the work that supports the opinion should be submitted; 

 Reliance placed on other assurance providers should be recognised; 

 Any qualifications to that opinion, together with the reason for qualification must be 
provided; 

 There should be disclosure of any impairments or restriction to the scope of the 
opinion; 

 There should be a comparison of actual audit work undertaken with planned work; 

 The performance of internal audit against its performance measures and targets 
should be summarised; and, 

 Any other issues considered relevant to the Annual Governance Statement should 
be recorded. 

1.2 This report also contains conclusions on the Review of the Effectiveness of Internal Audit, 
which includes;  

 The degree of conformance with the PSIAS and the results of any quality assurance 
and improvement programme; 

 The outcomes of the performance indicators; and, 

Page 49

Agenda Item 7.



 The degree of compliance with CIPFA’s Statement on the Role of the Head of 
Internal Audit. 

 
2.0  CURRENT PROGRESS 
 

2.1 The Annual Report and Opinion 2019/20 and the Review of the Effectiveness of Internal 
 Audit are shown in the report attached. 

 
3.0  REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION 
 

3.1 The Governance and Audit Committee, in maintaining an overview as to the quality of 
systems of internal control in operation at the Council, is being requested to note and 
approve the assurance opinion awarded, and confirm that key information provided is 
carried across to the Council’s Annual Governance Statement, which is also considered on 
the agenda.  

3.2.1 The Governace and Audit Committee, in ensuring it fulfils its obligations is being requested 
to review the effectiveness of the Internal Audit service, and to note and approve this 
report. 

 
4.0 IMPLICATIONS 
 
4.1 Corporate Priorities 
 
4.1.1 Internal Audit helps to ensure that the service areas reviewed and ensuring that they are 

working towards the efficient and effective delivery of the Council’s corporate priorities. 
 

Background papers: - None 

 

Lead Contact Officer 
Name and Post: Emma Hodds, Head of Internal Audit 
Telephone Number: 01508 533791 
Email: ehodds@s-norfolk.gov.uk 
 
Director / Officer who will be attending the Meeting Faye Haywood Internal Audit Manager 
 
Key Decision: No 
 
Exempt Decision: No 
 
Appendices attached to this report:  Annual Report and Opinion 2019/20 
 

 

Page 50



   
  

Page 1 of 16 

 

Eastern Internal Audit Services 

 

 
 

SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

Annual Report and Opinion 2019/20 

Responsible Officer: Emma Hodds – Head of Internal Audit for South Holland DC 

 
CONTENTS 

 

1. INTRODUCTION ....................................................................................................... 2 

2.  ANNUAL OPINION OF THE HEAD OF INTERNAL AUDIT ..................................... 2 

2.1  Roles and responsibilities .................................................................................... 2 

2.2  The opinion itself .................................................................................................. 3 

3.  AUDIT WORK UNDERTAKEN DURING THE YEAR ................................................ 3 

4.  THIRD PARTY ASSURANCES ................................................................................. 6 

5.  ANNUAL REVIEW OF THE EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL AUDIT .................... 6 

APPENDIX1 – AUDIT WORK UNDERTAKEN DURING 2019/20 ............................... 10 

APPENDIX 2 ASSURANCE CHART ........................................................................... 12 

APPENDIX 3 – LIMITATIONS AND RESPONSIBILITIES ........................................... 15 

 

  

Page 51



   
  

Page 2 of 16 

 

1. INTRODUCTION 

1.1 The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 require that “a relevant authority must undertake 
an effective internal audit to evaluate the effectiveness of its risk management, control and 
governance processes, taking into account public sector internal auditing standards or 
guidance”. 

1.2 Those standards – the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards - require the Chief Audit 
Executive to provide a written report to those charged with governance (known in this 
context as Governance and Audit Committee) to support the Annual Governance Statement 
(AGS). This report must set out:  

 The opinion on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the Council’s framework of 
governance, risk management and control during 2019/20, together with reasons if 
the opinion is unfavourable; 

 A summary of the internal audit work carried from which the opinion is derived, the 
follow up of management action taken to ensure implementation of agreed action as 
at financial year end and any reliance placed upon third party assurances; 

 Any issues that are deemed particularly relevant to the Annual Governance 
Statement (AGS); 

 The Annual Review of the Effectiveness of Internal Audit, which includes; the level of 
compliance with the PSIAS and the results of any quality assurance and 
improvement programme, the outcomes of the performance indicators and the 
degree of compliance with CIPFA’s Statement on the Role of the Head of Internal 
Audit. 

1.3 When considering this report, the statements made therein should be viewed as key items 
which need to be used to inform the organisation’s Annual Governance Statement, but there 
are also a number of other important sources to which the Governance and Audit Committee 
and statutory officers of the Council should be looking to gain assurance.   Moreover, in the 
course of developing overarching audit opinions for the authority, it should be noted that the 
assurances provided here, can never be absolute and therefore, only reasonable assurance 
can be provided that there are no major weaknesses in the processes subject to internal 
audit review. The annual opinion is thus subject to inherent limitations (covering both the 
control environment and the assurance over controls) and these are examined more fully at 
Appendix 3. 

2.  ANNUAL OPINION OF THE HEAD OF INTERNAL AUDIT 

2.1  Roles and responsibilities 

 The Council is responsible for establishing and maintaining appropriate risk 
management processes, control systems, accounting records and governance 
arrangements. 

 The AGS is an annual statement by the Leader of the Council and the Chief 
Executive that records and publishes the Council’s governance arrangements. 

 An annual opinion is required on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the 
Council’s framework of governance, risk management and control, based upon and 
limited to the audit work performed during the year. 

This is achieved through the delivery of the risk based Annual Internal Audit Plan discussed 
and approved by the Executive Management Team and key stakeholders and then approved 
by the Governance and Audit Committee at its meeting on 14 March 2019. Any justifiable 
amendments that are requested during the year are discussed and agreed with senior 
management and reported through to Committee. This opinion does not imply that internal 

Page 52



   
  

Page 3 of 16 

 

audit has reviewed all risks and assurances, but it is one component to be taken into 
account during the preparation of the AGS. 

The Governance and Audit Committee should consider this opinion, together with any 
assurances from management, its own knowledge of the Council and any assurances 
received throughout the year from other review bodies such as the external auditor. 

2.2  The opinion itself 

The overall opinion in relation to the framework of governance, risk management and control 
at South Holland District Council is Reasonable. This conclusion has been reached by 
considering the following points, which are further expanded in section 3.4 of the report. 

During 2019/20 a total of 18 internal audit reviews have been completed at South Holland 
District Council. A total of 13 of these concluded in a Reasonable grading and for two areas 
a Substantial assurance grading was given. This was for Revenues and for Benefits.   

A total of two reports received a Limited assurance grading. The first in relation to Markets 
and the second Car Parks however, no urgent recommendations were raised during either of 
these reviews.    

A No Assurance grading was given in the area of Private Sector Housing. A total of 28 
recommendations were raised during this review of which 68% have now been addressed by 
management. Two urgent, three important and four needs attention recommendations 
remain outstanding and we therefore recommend that these are referenced within the 
Councils Annual Governance Statement until they are completed.  

Two audit reports from 2019/20 remain unfinished due to the impact that the Coronavirus 
pandemic has had on the Council, and the need for staff to be redeployed to urgent tasks. 
These reports were for Asset Management and Remote Access. We are satisfied that whilst 
we were not been able to complete this work in these areas, our ability to provide an overall 
opinion on the Governance Risk Management and Control framework at the Council has not 
been affected as 95% of the 2019/20 Internal Audit Plan has now been delivered.   

Three urgent historical recommendations, one for Asset Management from 2017/18, and two 
from Financial Services remain outstanding from 2018/19 and are also referenced in Section 
3.4 for inclusion in the Councils Annual Governance Statement.  

We have been able to conclude a Reasonable assurance grading overall for the Council’s 
Governance, Risk Management and Control framework by considering that for most of the 
areas audited a positive assurance grading was given. We have also taken into 
consideration the swift action of management in quickly addressing the majority of urgent 
recommendations raised in the Private Sector Housing review. Some risks do however 
remain, and we would urge management to monitor these closely until completion can be 
verified.  

This opinion has been discussed with the Section 151 Officer, and Senior Management prior 
to publication. 

3.  AUDIT WORK UNDERTAKEN DURING THE YEAR 

3.1 Appendix 1 records the internal audit work delivered during the year on which the opinion is 
based. In addition, Appendix 2 is attached which shows the assurances provided over 
previous financial years to provide an overall picture of the control environment. 

Page 53



   
  

Page 4 of 16 

 

 

3.2 Summary of the internal audit work 

The work undertaken by Eastern Internal Audit Services (TIAA Ltd) and Audit Lincolnshire) 
in 2019/20 has covered a wide range of services and has resulted in both assurance opinion 
reports being concluded and suggested improvements made through position statements.  

A total of 18 assurance reports have been completed, with 15 of these being positive, and 
three of these being a negative assurance grading. Details of the limited and no assurance 
reports are provided at 3.4 of this report.  

Two position statements have been issued this year by TIAA Ltd providing suggested action 
and improvements to management for Strategic Enforcement and IT Strategy.  

Due to the impact of the Coronavirus pandemic on the Council, Internal Audit’s ability to 
complete two audits has been impacted. These areas were Asset Management and Remote 
Access. In addition, Internal Audit were not able to finalise the following reports in time for 
this committee, However, they have been issued to management in draft and the Executive 
Summary indicating an overall grading has been presented to the Committee in the Internal 
Audit Progress Report.  

 Procurement and Contract Management 

 Disaster Recovery 

The significant changes to the internal audit plan this year include the deferral of the 
Accounts Receivable and Income reviews due to PSPS finance system implementation and 
the postponement of the Office 365 review to allow this product to be installed.  

All rationale and reasoning for changes to the 2019/20 audit plan have been presented to 
the Committee in the Internal Audit Progress Report throughout the year. Overall the 
2019/20 plan has been reduced by 25 days to take account of the needs of the business and 
to ensure the Internal Audit Service was able to add value where required. A further 10 days 
were not delivered due to the impact of the Coronavirus pandemic as mentioned above.   

3.3 Follow up of management action 

In relation to the follow up of management actions to ensure that they have been effectively 
implemented the position at year end is that of the 71 recommendations agreed by TIAA Ltd 
and Audit Lincolnshire in 2019/20, 39 are now complete, 9 are outstanding (two urgent, three 
important and four needs attention and 23 are not yet due.  A further 15 recommendations 
have been raised with management in reports that are not yet finalised and are not included 
in this total.  

A total of 14 recommendations remain outstanding from 2018/19, two urgent and seven 
important and five needs attention. All 14 outstanding recommendations are previously 
referred to in the follow up report in more detail earlier on in the agenda. 

A total of four recommendations (one urgent and three important) also remain outstanding 
from 2017/18. These recommendations are also referred to in more detail within the follow 
up report earlier in the agenda.  

The performance module utilised by the Council (Pentana) is used to record of the audit 
recommendations, as well as all related performance information such as risk and 
performance measures. There does remain the challenge of ensuring that this is always kept 

Page 54



   
  

Page 5 of 16 

 

up to date and that responses are provided as needed for corporate reporting and 
monitoring of services. Audit Lincolnshire are responsible for following up on the audit 
recommendations raised within their audits.  

3.4 Issues for inclusion in the Annual Governance Statement 

Looking back over the issues raised in the 2018/19 Internal Audit Annual Opinion, the 
following issues remain for the Council to address.  

 
A limited assurance opinion and eight recommendations were raised for Asset Management 
in 2017/18. One urgent and one important recommendation remain outstanding. The urgent 
recommendation relates to completing a programmed review of all leases, the important 
recommendation relates to updating the lettings policy. We were unable to complete our 
follow up review of Asset Management in 2019/20 due to the impact of the Coronavirus 
pandemic. We therefore suggest that these recommendations are referenced within the 
Council’s Annual Governance Statement until independent verification can take place to 
demonstrate completion.    

A total of two urgent and four important recommendations remain outstanding from the 
2018/19 Financial Services report which was given a limited assurance grading. These 
recommendations relate to ensuring that during the implementation of the new finance 
system, financial control in areas of segregation and approval can be automated. We expect 
the new PSPS system to be live in October 2020 and will be able to verify that these controls 
have been implemented at this point during key controls testing. Until then we recommend 
that the two outstanding urgent recommendations are referenced in the Council’s annual 
governance statement. They relate to the review of restrictions and limits and segregation of 
duties within the new system.   

Significant findings raised in 2019/20  

In 2019/20, the private sector housing report was given a No Assurance grading. A total of 
28 recommendations; 16 urgent, six important and six needs attention recommendations 
were raised of which nine remain outstanding. The two urgent outstanding recommendations 
relate to; developing an empty homes strategy and completing a review of Private Sector 
Housing budgets. Until these recommendations can be verified as complete, we recommend 
that the Council refers to these in the Annual Governance Statement.  

A further two areas were given a Limited assurance grading in 2019/20. They relate to 
Markets and Car Parks. For Markets a total of four important and one needs attention 
recommendations were raised. Three important recommendations are now complete. For 
Car Parks three of the four important recommendations raised have now been addressed. 
Whilst a limited assurance grading was given for both areas, no urgent priority 
recommendations were raised during this review that we feel would need to be referenced in 
the Council’s Annual Governance Statement.   

Due to it being of urgent priority, we recommend that the recommendation raised in the 
reasonable Financial Services report completed by Audit Lincolnshire is referenced in the 
AGS as this relates to ensuring that Authorisation Matrix is adhered to in respect of purchase 
requisitions and creditor invoices. We expect this will be resolved as the new financial 
system is able to automate this control. Implementation is due for October 2020.  

One other urgent recommendation was raised during the Housing Rents review in 
relation to ensuring that the write off position of former tenant arrears should be 
determined and actioned accordingly. Implementation has been agreed for 31 March 
2021. We recommend that this is referenced within the Council’s Annual Governance 

Page 55



   
  

Page 6 of 16 

 

Statement until it is resolved.  
 

4.  THIRD PARTY ASSURANCES 

4.1 In arriving at the overall opinion reliance has been placed on third party assurances provided 
by Audit Lincolnshire, formally East Lindsay District Council. Protocols are in place to enable 
all audit work programmes to be shared with the Head of Internal Audit before the start of the 
audit and on conclusion of the audit, the summary working papers and draft report is also 
provided. This approach enables input into the scope of the audit to ensure that all pertinent 
areas are covered. It also enables a detailed review of the work that has been undertaken.  
We can therefore agree with the conclusions that are reached and the recommendations that 
are raised.   

5.  ANNUAL REVIEW OF THE EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL AUDIT 

5.1 Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme (QAIP) 

5.1.1 Internal Assessment 

A checklist for conformance with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) and the 
Local Government Application Note has been completed for 2019/20. This covers; the 
Definition of Internal Auditing, the Code of Ethics and the Standards themselves.  

The Attribute Standards address the characteristics of organisations and parties performing 
Internal Audit activities, in particular; Purpose, Authority and Responsibility, Independence 
and Objectivity, Proficiency and Due Professional Care, and Quality Assurance and 
Improvement Programme. 

The Performance Standards describe the nature of Internal Audit activities and provide 
quality criteria against which the performance of these services can be evaluated, in 
particular; Managing the Internal Audit Activity, Nature of Work, Engagement Planning, 
Performing the Engagement, Communicating Results, Monitoring Progress and 
Communicating the Acceptance of Risks. 

On conclusion of completion of the checklist conformance has been ascertained in relation 
to the Definition of Internal Auditing, the Code of Ethics and the Performance Standards. 

The detailed internal assessment checklist has been forwarded to the Section 151 Officer for 
independent scrutiny and verification. 

5.1.2 External Assessment 

In relation to the Attribute Standards it is recognised that to achieve full conformance an 
external assessment is needed. This is required to be completed every five years, with the 
first review having been completed in January 2017. 

The external assessment was undertaken by the Institute of Internal Auditors and it has 
concluded that “the internal audit service conforms to the professional standards and 
the work has been performed in accordance with the Internal Professional Practices 
Framework”. Thus, confirming conformance to the required standards. 

The external assessment report has previously been provided to the Section 151 Officer and 
the Committee. 

 

Page 56



   
  

Page 7 of 16 

 

 

5.2 Performance Indicator outcomes EIAS (TIAA) 

5.2.1 The Internal Audit Service is benchmarked against several performance indicators as agreed 
by the Governance and Audit Committee.  Actual performance against these targets is 
outlined within the table below and overleaf: 

5.2.2 It is encouraging to note that 9 out of a possible 11 performance measures have been 
achieved, with four of these exceeding targets. Client feedback has been provided which has 
been positive recognising the professional service provided and the value that internal audit 
has brought to the Council. However, we acknowledge that questionnaire responses from 
Officers following each internal audit has been less than in previous years. To ensure that 
we obtain higher levels of feedback we will be working with the Performance Risk and Audit 
Board in 2020/21 to ensure that requests for feedback are actioned. 

 In relation to performance measure four, one performance report was received outside of the 
15 working day deadline, however this was received the next working day and therefore 
represents an isolated incident.  

 In relation to performance measure three, as mentioned earlier within this report for reasons 
outside of the control of the Internal Audit team a total of two internal audit reviews were not 
completed in time for year end.    

 We are however pleased to report that a total of 18 planned internal audit reviews assigned 
to TIAA were issued to management in draft by 14 April 2020.  

Area / Indicator Frequency Target Actual  Comments 

Audit Committee / Senior Management 
1. Audit Committee Satisfaction – 

measured annually 
2. Chief Finance Officer Satisfaction – 

measured quarterly 

 
Annual 
 
Annual  

 
Adequate 
 
Good 

 
Excellent 
 
Good 

 
Exceeds 
 
Achieved 

Internal Audit Process 
3. Each quarters audits completed to draft 

report within 10 working days of the end 
of the quarter 

 
 

 
4. Quarterly assurance reports to the 

Contract Manager within 15 working 
days of the end of each quarter 
 
 
 

5. An audit file supporting each review and 
showing clear evidence of quality control 
review shall be completed prior to the 
issue of the draft report (a sample of 
these will be subject to quality review by 
the Contract Manager) 
 

6. Compliance with Public Sector Internal 
Audit Standards 
 

7. Respond to the Contract Manager within 
3 working days where unsatisfactory 
feedback has been received. 

 
Quarterly 
 
 
 
 
 
Quarterly  

 
100% 
 
 
 
 
 
100% 
 
 
 
 
 
100% 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Generally 
conforms 
 
100% 
 
 
 

 
100% 
 
 
 
 
 
100% 
 
 
 
 
 
100% 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Generally 
conforms 
 
100% 

 
Not achieved. 2/18 draft 
reports were not issued 
within deadline due to the 
Coronavirus pandemic.  
 
 
Not achieved – one 
quarterly report received 
over the 15 working day 
deadline. 
 
 
Achieved  
 
 
 
 
 
 
Achieved  
 
 
n/a 
 
 

Page 57



   
  

Page 8 of 16 

 

Clients 
8. Average feedback score received from 

key clients (auditees) 
 

9. Percentage of recommendations 
accepted by management 

  
Adequate 
 
 
90% 

 
Excellent 
 
 
100% 

 
Exceeded, 5 responses 
received.  
 
Exceeds  

Innovations and Capabilities 
10. Percentage of qualified (including 

experienced) staff working on the 
contract each quarter 

11. Number of training hours per member of 
staff completed per quarter 

  
60% 
 
 
1 day 
 

 
100% 
 
 
1 day 

 
Exceeds 
 
 
Achieved  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5.3  Effectiveness of the Head of Internal Audit (HIA) arrangements as measured against 
the CIPFA Role of the HIA 

5.3.1 This Statement sets out the five principles that define the core activities and behaviours that 
apply to the role of the Head of Internal Audit, and the organisational arrangements to 
support them. The Principles are: 

 Champion best practice in governance, objectively assessing the adequacy of 
governance and management of risks; 

 Give an objective and evidence based opinion on all aspects of governance, risk 
management and internal control; 

 Undertake regular and open engagement across the Authority, particularly with the 
Management Team and the Audit Committee; 

 Lead and direct an Internal Audit Service that is resourced to be fit for purpose; and 

 Head of Internal Audit to be professionally qualified and suitably experienced. 

Completion of the checklist confirms full compliance with the CIPFA guidance on the Role of 
the Head of Internal Audit in relation to the 5 principles set out within. 

The detailed checklist has been forwarded to the Section 151 Officer for independent 
scrutiny and verification. 

 

 

 

Page 58



   
  

Page 9 of 16 

 

 

 

Page 59



 

Page 10 of 16 

 

APPENDIX1 – AUDIT WORK UNDERTAKEN DURING 2019/20 
 
Audit Area Assurance No of Recs Implemented P1 OS P2 OS P3 OS Not yet due 

Annual Opinion Audits 

Strategic Enforcement  Position 
Statement  

      

Private Sector Housing No Assurance 28 19 2 3 4 0 

Strategic Housing Reasonable 2 0 0 0 0 2 

Environmental Protection  Reasonable 2 2 0 0 0 0 

Section 106 Agreements Reasonable 4 4 0 0 0 0 

Leisure  Reasonable 2 2 0 0 0 0 

Corporate Plan, Performance Reasonable 4 4 0 0 0 0 

Markets Limited 5 3 0 0 0 2 

Corporate Governance  Reasonable 2 0 0 0 0 2 

Procurement & Contract 
Management DRAFT 

Reasonable 8 0 0 0 0 8 

Housing Repairs and 
Maintenance 

Reasonable 1 0 0 0 0 1 

Car Parks Limited  5 3 0 0 0 2 

IT audits 

IT Strategy  Position 
Statement 

      

Disaster Recovery DRAFT Reasonable 7 0 0 0 0 7 

PSPS audits  

Housing Rents Reasonable 5 0 0 0 0 5 

Revenues Substantial 1 1 0 0 0 0 

Benefits Substantial  1 1 0 0 0 0 

Financial Services  Reasonable 2 0 0 0 0 2 

HR and Payroll  Reasonable 3 0 0 0 0 3 

Accountancy Services  Reasonable 4 0 0 0 0 4 

Total 86 39 2 3 4 38 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 60



 

Page 11 of 16 

 

Assurance level definitions Number 

Substantial Assurance Based upon the issues identified there is a robust series of suitably designed controls 
in place upon which the organisation relies to manage the risks to the continuous and 
effective achievement of the objectives of the process, and which at the time of our 
audit review were being consistently applied. 

2 

Reasonable Assurance Based upon the issues identified there is a series of internal controls in place, 
however these could be strengthened to facilitate the organisations management of 
risks to the continuous and effective achievement of the objectives of the process. 
Improvements are required to enhance the controls to mitigate these risks. 

13 

Limited Assurance Based upon the issues identified the controls in place are insufficient to ensure that 
the organisation can rely upon them to manage the risks to the continuous and 
effective achievement of the objectives of the process. Significant improvements are 
required to improve the adequacy and effectiveness of the controls to mitigate these 
risks. 

2 

No Assurance Based upon the issues identified there is a fundamental breakdown or absence of 
core internal controls such that the organisation cannot rely upon them to manage risk 
to the continuous and effective achievement of the objectives of the process. 
Immediate action is required to improve the controls required to mitigate these risks. 

1 

 
Urgent – Priority 1 Fundamental control issue on which action to implement should be taken within 1 month. 

Important Priority 2 Control issue on which action to implement should be taken within 3 months. 

Needs Attention – Priority 3 Control issue on which action to implement should be taken within 6 months. 

 
 
 
 

P
age 61



 

Page 12 of 16 

 

APPENDIX 2 ASSURANCE CHART  
 

Eastern Internal Audit Services  2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

Annual Opinion / Corporate Audits   

Corporate Governance Reasonable Reasonable  Reasonable Reasonable  

Risk Management Postponed to 
2017/18 

Substantial     

Compass Point - Governance / Finance     Reasonable   

Corporate Performance and Corporate Plan   Substantial    Reasonable 

Procurement and Contract Management    Limited Reasonable  

Transformation Programme - benefits realisation Position 
Statement 

Position 
Statement 

    

Fundamental Financial Systems   

Housing Rents / Management   Reasonable      

Payroll & Human Resources     Reasonable  

See also ELDC conclusions below         

Service Area Audits   

Strategic Housing Reasonable     Reasonable 

Housing Right to Buy Reasonable       

Welland Homes   Reasonable      

Asset Management   Limited Position 
Statement 

 

Delivery Unit Team     Position 
Statement 

  

Economic Development (GFG 1718)   Position 
Statement 

    

Licensing and Business Support Reasonable       

Corporate Health and Safety Reasonable       

Environmental Protection   Limited Reasonable Reasonable 

Food, Health & Safety     Reasonable   

Legal Services         

Democratic Services    Reasonable   

P
age 62



 

Page 13 of 16 

 

Eastern Internal Audit Services  2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

Elections and Electoral Registration   Reasonable      

Communications         

Branding Reasonable       

Housing needs, allocation, homelessness, 
housing register and PSH 

  Position 
Statement 

Reasonable   

Planned maintenance, major contracts and 
property services 
Responsive repairs, voids and recharges 

Postponed to 
2017/18 

Position 
Statement 

Position 
Statement 

Reasonable 

Strategic Enforcement, including Community 
Safety & ASB 

      Position Statement  

Leisure Position 
Statement 

  Substantial Reasonable 

South Holland Centre Substantial       

Ascoughfee  Reasonable       

Planning - development control, enforcement and 
land charges 

  Reasonable      

Section 106 Agreements   Limited   Reasonable 

Private Sector Housing       No Assurance 

Building Control     Substantial   

Markets         Limited 

Car Parking    Limited  

Environmental Services - waste, recycling and 
depot services 

    Reasonable   

ICT Audits   

Cybersecurity Limited   Reasonable   

CRM Application        

Office 365        

Remote Access        

Disaster Recovery       Reasonable 

IT Strategy    Position Statement 

Service Desk     Substantial   

P
age 63



 

Page 14 of 16 

 

Eastern Internal Audit Services  2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

ISO27001: 2013 Gap Analysis Position 
Statement 

      

IT Project Delivery   Reasonable      

Change and Patch Management   Reasonable      

Software Licencing     Reasonable   

 
 

ELDC reports 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

Key Controls and Assurance         

Income  Reasonable Reasonable    

Housing Rents  Reasonable   Reasonable Reasonable 

Accounts Receivable  Reasonable      

Revenues  Reasonable Limited Reasonable Substantial 

Benefits  Reasonable Reasonable Reasonable Substantial 

Financial services 
Includes AP, AR, AM, Income, Budget 

Reasonable Reasonable Limited Reasonable 

Accounts Payable    Reasonable     

Accountancy Services 
Includes General Ledger, Control Accounts, 
Treasury, Bank Rec 

    Reasonable Reasonable 

Payroll    Limited    Reasonable 

Service Area Reviews         

Accounts Payable Limited       

Payroll Reasonable       

Accounts Receivable    No assurance     

Budget Management and Control   tbc     

 
 
  

P
age 64



 

Page 15 of 16 

 

APPENDIX 3 – LIMITATIONS AND RESPONSIBILITIES 
 
Limitations inherent to the Internal Auditor’s work 
 
The Internal Audit Annual Report has been prepared and TIAA Ltd (the Internal Audit Services 
contractor) were engaged to undertake the agreed programme of work as approved by 
management and the Audit Committee, subject to the limitations outlined below. 
 
Opinions 
 
The opinions expressed are based solely on the work undertaken in delivering the approved 
2019/20 Annual Internal Audit Plan. The work addressed the risks and control objectives agreed for 
each individual planned assignment as set out in the corresponding audit planning memorandums 
(terms of reference) and reports. 
 
Internal Control  
 
The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to 
eliminate the risk of failure to achieve corporate/service policies, aims and objectives: it can 
therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness.   Internal control 
systems essentially rely on an ongoing process of identifying and prioritising the risks to the 
achievement of the organisation’s policies, aims and objectives, evaluating the likelihood of those 
risks being realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, 
effectively and economically.   That said, internal control systems, no matter how well they have 
been constructed and operated, are affected by inherent limitations.   These include the possibility 
of poor judgement in decision-making, human error, control processes being deliberately 
circumvented by employees and others, management overriding controls and the occurrence of 
unforeseeable circumstances. 
 
Future Periods 
 
Internal Audit’s assessment of controls relating to South Holland District Council is for the year 
ended 31 March 2020. Historic evaluation of effectiveness may not be relevant to future periods due 
to the risk that: 

 The design of controls may become inadequate because of changes in the operating 
environment, law, regulation or other matters; or, 

 The degree of compliance with policies and procedures may deteriorate. 
 
Responsibilities of Management and Internal Auditors 
 
It is management’s responsibility to develop and maintain sound systems of risk management, 
internal control and governance and for the prevention and detection of irregularities and fraud.   
Internal Audit work should not be seen as a substitute for management’s responsibilities for the 
design and operation of these systems. 
 
The Head of Internal Audit, has sought to plan Internal Audit work, so that there is a reasonable 
expectation of detecting significant control weaknesses and, if detected, additional work will then be 
carried out which is directed towards identification of consequent fraud or other irregularities.   
However, internal audit procedures alone, even when carried out with due professional care, do not 
guarantee that fraud will be detected and TIAA’s examinations as the South Holland District 
Councils internal auditors should not be relied upon to disclose all fraud, defalcations or other 
irregularities which may exist. 
 
 
 

Page 65



 

Page 16 of 16 

 

 

Page 66



 
Report of: Head of Internal Audit for South Holland DC  
 
To:    Governance and Audit Committee 30 July 2020 
 
Author:  Faye Haywood, Internal Audit Manager 
 
Subject: Progress Report on Internal Audit Activity 
 
Purpose: This report examines the progress made between 2 March 2020 and 24 July 

2020 in relation to the completion of the Annual Internal Audit Plan for 
2019/20. 

 

 
Recommendation(s):  
 
1) That members note the progress of the internal audit plan of work for 2019/20. 
 

 
1.0 BACKGROUND 
 
1.1 The Governance and Audit Committee receive updates on progress made against the 

annual internal audit plan. This report forms part of the overall reporting requirements to 
assist the Council in discharging its responsibilities in relation to the internal audit activity.  

 
1.2 The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards require the Chief Audit Executive to report to the 

Governance and Audit Committee the performance of internal audit relative to its agreed 
plan, including any significant risk exposures and control issues. The frequency of reporting 
at South Holland is to each meeting.  

 
To comply with the above the report identifies:   

o Any significant changes to the approved Audit Plan; 
o Progress made in delivering the agreed audits for the year;  
o Any significant outcomes arising from those audits; and 
o Performance measures to date. 

 
2.0 CURRENT PROGRESS 
 
2.1 The current position in relation to the completion of the Annual Internal Audit Plan 2019/20 

is shown within the report. 
 

3.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION 
 
3.1 The Governance and Audit Committee are requested to receive and note the Progress 

Report on Internal Audit Activity.  In doing so, the Committee is ensuring that the Internal 
Audit Service remains compliant with professional auditing standards and are fulfilling their 
terms of reference. 
 

4.0 IMPLICATIONS 
 
4.1 Corporate Priorities 
 
4.1.1 Internal Audit helps to ensure that the service areas reviewed and ensuring that they are 

working towards the efficient and effective delivery of the Council’s corporate priorities. 
 

Page 67

Agenda Item 8.



4.2 Financial  
 
4.2.1 The Internal Audit Plan has been delivered within the approved budget for 2019/20. 
 
4.3 Risk Management  
 
44.3.1 Internal Audit planning starts with the Council’s key risks, which then directs the audit plan 

for the financial year. Internal Audit reports then identify risks and control weaknesses 
within the Council which are highlighted in this report, with appropriate management action 
being agreed to mitigate these risks within agreed timeframes. 

 

Background papers: - None 

 

Lead Contact Officer 
Name and Post: Faye Haywood Internal Audit Manager for South Holland DC 
Telephone Number: 01508 533873 
Email: fhaywood@s-norfolk.gov.uk 
 
Director / Officer who will be attending the Meeting Faye Haywood 
 
Key Decision: No 
 
Exempt Decision: No 
 
Appendices attached to this report:  Progress Report on Internal Audit Activity 
 

(Please note that Appendix 3 to this report is not for publication by virtue of Paragraph 3 
(Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person (including the 
authority holding that information)) in Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972, 
and is therefore attached to this agenda at item 11).  

 

Page 68



Page 1 of 22 

 

Eastern Internal Audit Services 

 

 
South Holland District Council 

Progress Report on Internal Audit Activity 

Period Covered: 2 March 2020 to 24 July 2020 

Responsible Officer: Faye Haywood, Internal Audit Manager South Holland District Council 

 

CONTENTS 

1. INTRODUCTION ............................................................................................................. 2 

2. SIGNIFICANT CHANGES TO THE APPROVED INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN ................... 2 

3.  PROGRESS MADE IN DELIVERING THE AGREED AUDIT WORK ............................. 2 

4.  THE OUTCOMES ARISING FROM OUR WORK ........................................................... 3 

5. PERFORMANCE MEASURES ....................................................................................... 5 

APPENDIX 1 – PROGRESS IN COMPLETING THE AGREED AUDIT WORK .................. 7 

APPENDIX 2 – AUDIT REPORT EXECUTIVE SUMMARIES ............................................. 9 

APPENDIX 3 - AUDIT REPORT EXECUTIVE SUMMARIES……………………  …………22 

 

  

Page 69



Page 2 of 22 

 

1. INTRODUCTION 

1.1 This report is issued to assist the Authority in discharging its responsibilities in relation to the 
internal audit activity.  

1.2 The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards also require the Chief Audit Executive to report to 
the Audit Committee on the performance of internal audit relative to its plan, including any 
significant risk exposures and control issues. The frequency of reporting and the specific 
content are for the Authority to determine. 

1.3 To comply with the above this report includes:  

 Any significant changes to the approved Audit Plan; 

 Progress made in delivering the agreed audits for the year; 

 Any significant outcomes arising from those audits; and 

 Performance Indicator outcomes to date. 

2. SIGNIFICANT CHANGES TO THE APPROVED INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 

2.1 At the meeting on 14 March 2019, the Annual Internal Audit Plan for the year was approved, 
identifying the specific audits to be delivered. Since our report to the Committee in 
November 2019, there has been no further significant changes to that plan.  

3.  PROGRESS MADE IN DELIVERING THE AGREED AUDIT WORK 

3.1 Appendix 1 covers progress made against the 2019/20 agreed internal audit plan. A total of 
170 days of work has been allocated to Eastern Internal Audit Services (EIAS) to be 
delivered by TIAA ltd. A total of 65 days was also allocated to Audit Lincolnshire (formally 
East Lindsay District Council).  

Audit Lincolnshire’s coverage includes the testing of key financial systems managed by 
Public Sector Partnership Services (previously Compass Point Business Services) on behalf 
of South Holland District Council.  The Head of Internal Audit places reliance on the work 
carried out by Audit Lincolnshire when concluding on the overall Internal Audit Opinion.  
Progress in relation to delivering the Audit Lincolnshire’s allocated days is provided in 
Appendix 1.   

3.2 In summary:  

142 days of programmed work has been completed by EIAS, equating to 93% of the 
(revised) Audit Plan for 2019/20 and 65 days have now been completed by Audit 
Lincolnshire.  In total 207 days have been delivered for the 2019/20 Internal Audit Plan.  

Due to the impact of the Coronavirus pandemic we were not able to complete the following 
audits:  

 Asset Management – a total of five days were delivered before the Coronavirus 
pandemic had a significant impact on our ability to complete the audit.  

 Remote Access – a total of five days were delivered before the Coronavirus 
pandemic had a significant impact on our ability to complete the audit.   

We have been unable to finalise the following reports due to the impact of the Coronavirus 
pandemic in time for the Committee meeting. The following reports have been completed but 
remain in draft. Executive Summaries of these reports have been provided and gradings 
indicated whilst we await management responses:  

Page 70



Page 3 of 22 

 

 

 Procurement and Contract Management 

 Disaster Recovery  

4.  THE OUTCOMES ARISING FROM OUR WORK 

4.1 On completion of each individual audit an assurance level is awarded using the following 
definitions: 

 Substantial Assurance: Based upon the issues identified there is a robust series of suitably 
designed internal controls in place upon which the organisation relies to manage the risks to 
the continuous and effective achievement of the objectives of the process, and which at the 
time of our review were being consistently applied. 

 Reasonable Assurance: Based upon the issues identified there is a series of internal 
controls in place, however these could be strengthened to facilitate the organisation’s 
management of risks to the continuous and effective achievement of the objectives of the 
process. Improvements are required to enhance the controls to mitigate these risks. 

 Limited Assurance: Based upon the issues identified the controls in place are insufficient to 
ensure that the organisation can rely upon them to manage the risks to the continuous and 
effective achievement of the objectives of the process. Significant improvements are 
required to improve the adequacy and effectiveness of the controls to mitigate these risks. 

 No Assurance: Based upon the issues identified there is a fundamental breakdown or 
absence of core internal controls such that the organisation cannot rely upon them to 
manage risk to the continuous and effective achievement of the objectives of the process. 
Immediate action is required to improve the controls required to mitigate these risks. 

4.2 Recommendations made on completion of audit work are prioritised using the following 
definitions: 

 Urgent (priority one): Fundamental control issue on which action to implement should be 
taken within 1 month. 

 Important (priority two): Control issue on which action to implement should be taken within 
3 months. 

 Needs attention (priority three): Control issue on which action to implement should be 
taken within 6 months. 

4.3 In addition, on completion of audit work “Operational Effectiveness Matters” are proposed, 
these set out matters identified during the assignment where there may be opportunities for 
service enhancements to be made to increase both the operational efficiency and enhance 
the delivery of value for money services. These are for management to consider and are not 
part of the follow up process. 

4.4 During the period covered by this report TIAA has issued three final reports: A total of two 
reports have been issued in draft and are awaiting management responses:  

 Audit Assurance P1 
 

P2 P3 

Corporate Governance Reasonable 0 2 0 

Procurement and Contract Management DRAFT Reasonable 0 3 5 

Housing Repairs and Maintenance Reasonable 0 1 0 

Page 71



Page 4 of 22 

 

Car Parks Limited 0 4 1 

Disaster Recovery DRAFT  Reasonable 0 3 1 

The Executive Summary of these reports are attached at Appendix 2 and Appendix 3, a 
full copy of these reports can be requested by Members. 

4.5 As can be seen in the table above as a result of this audit 20 recommendations have been 
raised with management. 

4.6 In addition, four Operational Effectiveness Matters have been proposed to management for 
consideration. 

4.7 It is encouraging to note that a four of the reports have achieved positive assurance gradings 
in this period demonstrating that the control framework is effective in those areas audited 
with no issues that need to be raised in the Council’s Annual Governance Statement.  

4.8 For one report in the area of Car Parks, a limited assurance grading was raised overall with 
four important and one needs attention recommendations raised. We are pleased to confirm 
that management have resolved three of the important recommendations raised. The 
remaining important recommendation highlighted below has been given a deadline of 31 
January 2020. The executive summary to this report is included at Appendix 3.  

 To undertake a review the Council's cash collection service to reduce the risk of non-
compliances with procurement rules.   

4.9 The Audit Lincolnshire Audit reviews for 2019/20 have been completed and reviewed by the 
Head of Internal Audit for South Holland and reliance placed on the work an overall grading 
for each report is indicated below: 

Audit Report Grading 

Revenues Substantial  

Benefits Substantial 

Housing Rents  Reasonable 

Financial Services Reasonable 

Accountancy Services Reasonable 

HR & Payroll  Reasonable 

 Revenues 

The Revenues report resulted in a total of 1 important recommendation raised in relation to 
documenting the approval of discretionary NDR relief forms.  This control has been built into 
the functionality of the Northgate system and will be tested again during the 2020/21 Internal 
Audit review.  

Benefits  

The Benefits report resulted in a total of 1 important recommendation raised in relation to the 
sign off and retention of evidence for control account reconciliations. This recommendation 
was immediately actioned.  

Accountancy Services  

 A reasonable assurance grading has been given for this review. A total of four important 
recommendations were raised relating to: Ensuring that control account reconciliations are 
regularly reviewed and approved, updating the Treasury Management mandate, reviewing 

Page 72



Page 5 of 22 

 

Treasury Management procedures and ensuring that Journals are only be made by 
authorised staff members.  

 Housing Rents 

 One urgent and four important recommendations were raised during this review and are 
awaiting management responses. A reasonable assurance grading has been indicated. The 
urgent recommendation relates to ensuring that tenant account write offs are considered in a 
timely manner. The four important recommendations relate to: resolving issues with the 
Northgate system to allow for better arrears management, automating the collection of KPI 
data for reporting, enhancing rent parameter checks, and regularly performing tenant rent 
account reconciliations.  

 Financial Services 

 A reasonable assurance grading has been given for this review. One urgent 
recommendation has been raised and is awaiting a management response. This relates to 
ensuring that the authorisation matrix is consistently adhered to in respect of purchase 
requisitions and creditor invoices. This will be tested during the 2020/21 audit when the new 
financial system should automate this control as part of its functionality.  An important 
recommendation has been raised in relation to ensuring that supplier verification notes are 
added to the system. This recommendation is due September 2020.  

 HR and Payroll 

 A reasonable assurance grading has been indicated for this review. A total of three important 
recommendations have been agreed. These relate to; ensuring that leavers adjustments are 
adequately supported, improving the detail in expense claims and ensuring that new starter 
documentation is returned to HR and retained.  

5. PERFORMANCE MEASURES – Eastern Internal Audit Services  

5.1 The Internal Audit Services contract includes a suite of key performance measures against 
which the new contractor will be reviewed on a quarterly basis.  

5.2 There are individual requirements for performance in relation to each measure; however, 
performance will be assessed on an overall basis as follows: 

 9-11 KPIs have met target = Green Status. 

 5-8 KPIs have met target = Amber Status. 

 4 or below have met target = Red Status. 

Where performance is amber or red a Performance Improvement Plan will be developed by 
the contractor and agreed with the Internal Audit Consortium Manager to ensure that 
appropriate action is taken. 

5.3 Quarter four has now concluded and a report on the performance measures provided to the 
Head of Internal Audit, performance is currently at green status with targets having been 
met.  

5.4 However, as explained earlier in this report, due to the impact of the Coronavirus Pandemic 
it was not possible to complete audit work in two areas these being, Asset Management and 
Remote Access. Two reports remain in draft awaiting management responses.  We continue 
to request responses from management and will endeavour to have these reports finalised in 
time for the next Committee meeting.  

Page 73



Page 6 of 22 

 

  

Page 74



Page 7 of 22 

 

APPENDIX 1 – PROGRESS IN COMPLETING THE AGREED AUDIT WORK  

 

P
age 75



Page 8 of 22 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 76



Page 9 of 22 

 

APPENDIX 2 – AUDIT REPORT EXECUTIVE SUMMARIES 

Assurance Review of SH/20/09 Corporate Governance Arrangements 

Executive Summary 

 

OVERALL ASSURANCE ASSESSMENT ACTION POINTS 

 

Control Area Urgent Important Needs Attention Operational 

Privacy Impact 

Assessments 

0 0 0 0 

Data Subject Rights  0 1 0 0 

Data Classification and 

Asset management 

0 1 0 0 

Data Security & Breach 

Management 

0 0 0 0 

Governance & Consent 

Data Controllers & 

Processors 

0 0 0 0 

Data Controllers & 

Processors Training  

0 0 0 1 

Total 0 2 0 1 

 

SCOPE 

A review of the General Data Protection Regulations (GDPR) has been completed to provide assurance that controls in this area are fully embedded, 

including revisiting previous controls / recommendations and that GDPR is well understood by staff and Members at both Councils. 

P
age 77



 

Page 10 of 22 

 

RATIONALE 

 The systems and processes of internal control are, overall, deemed 'Reasonable Assurance' in managing the risks associated with the audit. The assurance 

opinion has been derived as a result of two 'important' recommendations being raised upon the conclusion of our work. 

 The audit has also raised one 'operational effectiveness matter', which sets out matters identified during the assignment where there may be opportunities for 

service enhancements to be made to increase both the operational efficiency and enhance the delivery of value for money services. 

 The previous review of GDPR was issued in January 2019, concluding with a ‘Reasonable’ assurance having raised three ‘Important’ and two ‘Needs 

attention’ recommendations. Whilst the overall assurance remains unchanged, evidence exists of improvements since the previous review. 

POSITIVE FINDINGS 

It is acknowledged there are areas where sound controls are in place and operating consistently: 

 Since the previous audit review in January 2019, the Information Governance Officer (IGO) has been appointed full time. This officer is supported by Data 

Protection Champions from each service area (across both Councils) thereby providing focal points to help embed and maintain compliance with GDPR.  

 A Statutory Information Group (SIG), which meets quarterly, was set up three years ago, reporting the joint Executive Management Team (EMT). It is led by 

the Executive Manager - Governance. Its purpose includes oversight of Data Protection issues and more recently, a watching brief on progress with the 

GDPR Project Plan. This provides senior management and Members with assurances that GDPR is being effectively managed across both Councils.  

 The Council continues to further develop its GDPR Project Plan which covers both Councils. This is essentially an internal plan used by the IGO and the 

Executive Manager – Governance to manage / monitor oversight of GDPR across both Councils and which is continually updated. This helps to manage 

compliance with GDPR by identifying areas where work is required and monitoring progress with their completion.  

 Privacy policies have been updated on both Council websites, thereby complying the GDPR requirements. 

 GDPR requirements are included in the procurement of all new contract documentation with notification sent to existing contractors advising them of the need 

to comply with GDPR. This mitigates the Council(s) against noncompliance with GDPR for contractors engaged by the Councils.     

ISSUES TO BE ADDRESSED 

The audit has also highlighted the following areas where two 'important' recommendations have been made. 

P
age 78



 

Page 11 of 22 

 

Data Subject Rights 

 Both Councils to ensure that all Information Asset Registers are accurate and complete by return to the IGO, in order to reduce the risk of data breaches.   

Data Classification and Asset Management 

 There is a need for improved control over the receipt and processing of SARs in order to reduce the risk of non-compliances with the Information 

Commissioner’s Office (ICO's) requirements. 

Operational Effectiveness Matters 

Data Controllers and Processors Training 

 The operational effectiveness matter for management to consider is for all staff to provide confirmation to the IGO that they have undertaken formal GDPR 

training, thereby ensuring any absences in the training provided are not overlooked.    

Previous audit recommendations 

The previous report on GDPR (BRK/19/07 SH/19/08) was issued in January 2019 with a ‘Reasonable’ assurance having raised three ‘Important’ and two ‘Needs 

attention’ recommendations. The three ‘Important’ recommendations related to issues with data classification and asset management at both Councils and third 

party providers (PSPS at South Holland – formally CPBS and ARP at Breckland).  The two ‘Needs attention’ recommendations, relating to both Councils, were in 

respect of documentation controls with policies and related risk scores on Pentana. All five recommendations were confirmed as implemented through cyclical follow 

up checks and reconfirmed through testing as part of this review.  

Other points to note 

The Executive Manager – Governance, has, in accordance with his delegated powers, delegated the role of Statutory Information Risk Officer (SIRO) for both 

Councils to the Executive Manager - Information, with effect from 1
st
 April 2019.  This change has been updated in the South Holland Constitution (Part 3 

Delegations - paragraph 6.3) although not as yet in the Breckland Constitution, for completeness. The Executive Manager - Governance stated that the Breckland 

Constitution will be updated to reflect this change at the same time as other changes which are currently being considered.   

It was agreed during the review for Information Asset Registers (IARs) to include the facility to record outcomes of Data Impact Assessments (DIA) in order to 

ensure details are actually recorded, as required by the ICO.  This requirement will be delegated to the respective Data Protection Champions and compliance 

therewith, be monitored by the IGO.   

 

 

 

P
age 79



 

Page 12 of 22 

 

Assurance Review of Procurement and Contract Management  

DRAFT Executive Summary 
 

OVERALL ASSURANCE ASSESSMENT ACTION POINTS 

 

Control Area Urgent Important Needs Attention Operational 

Off contract spend 0 2 0 0 

Procurement   of works, 

services and supplies 

0 1 5 1 

Total 0 3 5 1 

No recommendations were raised for exemptions. 

SCOPE 

The previous audit of joint review of Procurement (BRK1901 SH1901) was completed in January 2019 as part of the 2018/19 audit plan and resulted in a 

‘Limited assurance’ opinion. This audit covered the review the systems and controls in place within Procurement to help confirm that these are operating 

adequately, effectively and efficiently. 

P
age 80



 

Page 13 of 22 

 

RATIONALE 

 

 The systems and processes of internal control are, overall, deemed 'Reasonable Assurance' in managing the risks associated with the audit. The assurance 

opinion has been derived as a result of three 'important' and five 'needs attention' recommendations being raised upon the conclusion of our work.  

 The audit has also raised one 'operational effectiveness matter', which sets out matters identified during the assignment where there may be opportunities for 

service enhancements to be made to increase both the operational efficiency and enhance the delivery of value for money services. 

 The previous audit report on Procurement and Contract Management (BRK/19/01 SH/19/01), issued in January 2019, and concluded in a ‘Limited’ assurance 

opinion, having raised 14 recommendations. Therefore, there has been an improvement in control since the previous review. 

POSITIVE FINDINGS 

 

It is acknowledged there are areas where sound controls are in place and operating consistently: 

 A dedicated Contracts and Procurement Team exists providing both Councils with the requisite advice, guidance and skills in procuring goods, works and 

services.  

 The Council uses the online procurement portal ‘In-Tend’, which fulfils the requirements of the Public Contract Regulations 2015.  

 Contract registers are maintained for both Councils and reviewed by the Contracts and Procurement Team thus ensuring that provision is made for those 

contracts included therein, nearing expiration.  

 Sample testing of exemptions and waivers confirmed that correct procedure had been followed, thus ensuring they were justified and properly authorised.   

 

ISSUES TO BE ADDRESSED 

The audit has highlighted the following areas where three 'important' recommendations have been made. 

Off contract spend 

 To update Financial Procedure Rules for aggregated spend to stipulate that where spend in year is likely to and or exceeds the tender threshold (£75k) for 

formal contracts, a formal tender exercise must be undertaken. This is to prevent the risk that correct processes are bypassed, either deliberately or 

unknowingly and that value for money is not achieved. (Both Councils) 

P
age 81



 

Page 14 of 22 

 

 In addition to reviewing the aggregated spend report, formal monitoring of in year aggregated spend be undertaken in order to ensure adherence to Financial 

Procedure Rules, where formal tendering is required. This involves comparing data from the Council’s finance systems and data in the Contracts Register on 

annual spend. This will reduce the risk of the Councils incurring expenditure over and above the agreed budget / original contract sum and non-compliance 

with formal tender requirements. (Both Councils) 

Procurement of works, services and supplies 

 For the Council to review the contractual arrangement with Ocella in order to confirm that Financial Procedure Rules are adhered too. Once complete, the 

terms of the contract be included in the Contracts Register and be subject to formal monitoring of contract terms (contract period and costs). There is currently 

a risk that original contract terms have expired and that the Council is unable to demonstrate it is receiving favourable terms. This is in addition to the risk of 

non-compliance with Financial Procedure Rules. (South Holland) 

The audit has also highlighted the following areas where five 'needs attention' recommendations have been made. 

Procurement of works, services and supplies 

 For all contracts to be procured via the Contract and Procurement Team as required in Financial Procedure Rules so as to reduce the risk of noncompliance 

with the Financial Procedures Rules and failure to demonstrate / achieve value for money and the omission from the Contracts Register which is a public 

facing document. (South Holland) 

 The Procurement and Commissioning Intentions be reviewed and updated, where necessary, in order reduce the risk of poor planning and implementation of 

the procurement process, which may result in poor value with the use of Councils funds. (Both Councils) 

 For robust control over password access to the procurement system (In-Tend), to reduce the risk of unauthorised access to key data and breach of data 

protection requirements. (Both Councils) 

 For Contract Registers on the website of both Councils to be updated on a monthly basis to include only current and ongoing contracts. This reduces the risk 

of reputational damage to the Council’s for non-compliance with the FOI Act and for not being openly transparent with its contract arrangements. (Both 

Councils) 

 To formally document the details of the staff members present during tender evaluation, since there is a risk not being able to demonstrate compliance with 

correct procedure where the requisite staff were not involved in the review process (Both Councils) 

Operational Effectiveness Matters 

The operational effectiveness matter for management to consider is for financial policies and procedures to include version control, including review dates, so as to 

help ensure they are confirmed as being reflective of correct practices.  

Previous audit recommendations 14 recommendations were raised in the previous audit of Procurement (BRK1901 SH1901) 2018/19 – Eleven ‘important’ and 

three ‘needs attention’. 12 of these have been completed, with two ‘needs attention’ recommendation relating to policies and procedures remaining outstanding and 

were confirmed to have been actioned during the review.  

P
age 82



 

Page 15 of 22 

 

Assurance Review of the SH2012 Housing Repairs and Maintenance Arrangements 

Executive Summary 
 

OVERALL ASSURANCE ASSESSMENT ACTION POINTS 

 

Control Area Urgent Important Needs Attention Operational 

Responsive Repairs – 

Performance 

0 1 0 0 

Total 0 1 0 0 

*There are three outstanding recommendations raised in the previous position statement, as 

noted in ‘other issues to note’, which remain outstanding and impact on the overall assurance 

rating. 

SCOPE 

This audit formed part of the 2019/20 audit plan. A full service review was scheduled to be undertaken of this area, in particular, of Housing Repairs and 

Maintenance. However, in agreement with the Shared Executive Director – Place and the Place Manager, it was subsequently agreed that the audit would 

revisit all the 33 key actions included in the Action Plan from the original review of the then Construction Housing (CSU) Unit (SH1601), completed in 

February 2016. The purpose of this approach it to provide senior management with a clear direction of travel since the original review. 

P
age 83



 

Page 16 of 22 

 

RATIONALE 

 

 The systems and processes of internal control are, overall, deemed 'Reasonable Assurance' in managing the risks associated with the audit. The assurance 

opinion has been derived as a result of one important' recommendation being raised upon the conclusion of our work. 

 The assurance opinion is also impacted due to three of the original 33 recommendations still to be fully implemented; details of which are referred to below in 

the section ‘Other points noted’. These do not detract from the significant improvement in the direction of travel since the original and subsequent follow up 

reviews and reflect that for the most part, full implementation of the outstanding recommendations are dependent of the implementation of the Northgate 

Repairs Module which had, until the outbreak of COVID-19, been scheduled for September / October 2020.  

 Due to the ceasing of audit activity during the Coronavirus pandemic, it was not possible for audit to hold a formal debrief with the Housing Repairs Manager 

prior to issue of this draft report, as is normal practice. 

  

POSITIVE FINDINGS 

 

It is acknowledged there are areas where sound controls are in place and operating consistently: 

 The 2017 Place review (and subsequent restructure) brought the service "in house" and in line with Council policies, procedures and practices with the service 

now operating the same as other sections in Housing. The former CSU Manager left the Council in September 2018 although had been absent since April 

2018. The current Housing Repairs Manager taking over officially from October 2018 having previously been seconded prior to the CSU Manager going 

absent and then officially leaving.  The service has also relocated to the West Marsh Road deport from Victoria Street, thereby integrated with other Council 

services. A further 2018/19 structure and management change and a rebranding as Housing Repairs further embedded the team (referred to as Housing 

Repairs Team) (HRT) as a function/section of the Housing Landlord Service rather than an arm’s length unit.  

 All issues with contractual arrangements raised in the original report have been addressed with evidence obtained of resolution and compliance with correct 

procedure. The only matter still to be completely resolved is for Void Cleaning (currently with Dynamics). This arrangement had continued as a decision as to 

whether to bring the service in-house or continue to contract it out, has still to be made and had been deferred due to addressing other higher priority areas. 

However, during the course of the audit fieldwork, it was established that the most likely outcome was to bring the service 'in-house' with discussions having 

taken place between the Housing Services Manager, the Strategic Finance & Compliance Manager and the HRA Accountant and Business Partner (PSPS). 

This will include producing a business case as the first step, including a financial evaluation, and a full commentary, explaining the need, benefits, risk for 

P
age 84



 

Page 17 of 22 

 

consideration by the Executive Director - Commercialisation and likely end up requiring Cabinet/Full Council approval as in is an increase in the manpower 

establishment. 

 All contractor work is now inspected and reported back to the Housing Repairs Manager by the response supervisor.  This will be extended to 10% of all jobs 

carried out by South Holland’sown operatives although has been put on hold due to COVID-19. Photos are taken of all voids both at the pre-inspection and 

the post inspection which enables the Housing Repairs Team to evidence for recharges as well as evidence the condition of the property as handed over. This 

helps avoid disputes with tenants where they are recharged for the repair work. 

 A new Housing Income Management Policy was approved by Cabinet at its meeting in December 2019 and recharges introduced with effect from 1
st
 January 

2020. These are payable through a debtors invoice (including a reoccurring invoice for instalments or by card payment via the Council’s website). This new 

arrangement has yielded circa £7k in recharges for January 2020.  

 Control over van stock has improved with clear audit trail over the purchasing of materials (from a new provider procured by the Council's Contracts and 

Procurement Team) which can be traced to the operative, the job and the supplier's invoice. 

 All planned work is now managed via Property Services and not the HRT this improving control over planned works and their budgets. 

 The voids process has vastly improved with a Voids Supervisor based within the HRT and the use of the Void Path on Northgate that has negated the need 

for the voids spreadsheet. The current void target is 28 days. This target has continually been met within the previous 12 months (the period tested by this 

audit) ranging from 10 days in March 2019 to 28 days in June 2019. The average number of days during this period was 19 days. This compared to 41 days in 

January, 50 days in February and 43 days in March 2016 against the same target when the original recommendations were raised as part of the SH/16/01 

Construction Housing (CSU) Unit audit review. This demonstrates that the measures taken since the original review have improved performance significantly. 

ISSUES TO BE ADDRESSED 

 

The audit has also highlighted the following area where one important’ recommendation has been made. 

Responsive Repairs and Performance 

 To introduce performance measures for monitoring against the new repair categories / timescales and to ensure any changes to response times are updated 

in written procedures, including the Council's website. This is to reduce the risk of non-compliances / poor performance not being identified and addressed 

resulting in prolonged hardship for the tenant and reputational damage to the Council.   

Operational Effectiveness Matters 

There are no operational effectiveness matters for management to consider. 

 

 

P
age 85



 

Page 18 of 22 

 

Other points notes (includes previous recommendations) 

 Housing Repairs now has draft procedure notes for some of its processes including the voids process. These are written around the current processes will 

change with the introduction of the Northgate Repairs Module. As such, the original important recommendation is still in progress.    

 Scripts have been partially reviewed although are placed on hold pending GOSS/Northgate Repairs module implementation. The task of reviewing scripts is 

part of the overall implementation plan scheduled for June 2020 - although with COVID-19, this could slip.  

 Responsive jobs have been reclassified as either Emergency or Routine (previously Emergency, Urgent and Routine). Changes were not made to Service 

Manager due to the costs involved and the pending introduction of the Northgate Repair Module which will replace Service Manager. As such, the original 

recommendation is still in progress.  

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 86



 

Page 19 of 22 

 

Assurance Review of Disaster Recovery (DR) Arrangements 

DRAFT Executive Summary 

 

OVERALL ASSURANCE ASSESSMENT ACTION POINTS 

 

Control Area Urgent Important Needs Attention Operational 

Adequacy of DR Provision 0 0 1 1 

Alignment with Business 

Continuity Plans 

0 0 1 0 

DR Testing 0 1 1 0 

DR Facility Physical 

Access Controls 

0 3 0 2 

Area 0 0 0 0 

Total 0 4 3 3 

 

SCOPE 

The joint network infrastructure for Breckland and South Holland District Councils is nearing completion; hence, an audit of Disaster Recovery has been 

placed in the 2019/20 audit plan to provide ongoing assurance over the work.  South Holland Council’s Disaster Recovery processes have not previously 

been audited by TIAA. 

P
age 87



   

 

Page 20 of 22 

 

RATIONALE 

 

 The systems and processes of internal control are, overall, deemed 'Reasonable Assurance' in managing the risks associated with the audit. The assurance 

opinion has been derived as a result of four 'Important' and three 'Needs Attention' recommendations being raised upon the conclusion of our work. 

 The audit has also raised three 'Operational Effectiveness Matters', which sets out matters identified during the assignment where there may be opportunities 

for service enhancements to be made to increase both the operational efficiency and enhance the delivery of value for money services. 

POSITIVE FINDINGS 

 

It is acknowledged there are areas where sound controls are in place and operating consistently: 

 The Public Sector Partnership Services Ltd (PSPSL) DR plan undergoes regular reviews, which are documented within the version history section of the plan. 

 Hard copies of the PSPSL DR plan discussed elsewhere in this report were observed to be held by key staff within the IT service.  The PSPSL DR plan covers 

all of their clients, including South Holland. 

 The audit noted regular servicing had been carried out on the available Air conditioning, UPS and Generator services. 

  

P
age 88



   

 

Page 21 of 22 

 

 

ISSUES TO BE ADDRESSED 

 

The audit has highlighted the following areas where four 'Important' recommendations have been made. 

Disaster Recovery Testing 

 There is a need to ensure that appropriate access to the Breckland infrastructure is provisioned to allow for periodic DR testing.  This is to reduce the risk of 

the existing DR processes not being fit for purpose. 

Disaster Recovery Facility Physical Access Controls 

 There is a need to ensure that the magnetic lock that has been fitted to the server room door is activated as soon as possible to reduce the risk of 

unauthorised access to the server room. 

 There is a communications cabinet located on the top floor of the Council's Priory Road site that requires relocation as it is not being cooled adequately.  

There is also a water supply in the room that is also being used as a cleaner's store room.  Relocation of the communications cabinet to a more appropriate 

location will reduce the risk of heat or water damage, which could result in service delivery issues. 

 There is a need to ensure that the built-in fire suppressant system that protects the Council's server room in Priory Road is being serviced on a regular basis.  

Regular servicing reduces the risk of the system not operating as required, following an incident. 

The audit has also highlighted the following areas where three 'Needs Attention' recommendations have been made. 

Adequacy of Disaster Recovery Provision 

 A separate DR folder containing the most relevant technical data that would be required to support a DR invocation needs to be created to reduce the risk of 

not being able to recovery relevant systems as required by the business. 

  

P
age 89



   

 

Page 22 of 22 

 

Alignment with Business Continuity Plans 

 There is a need to work with the Council's Business Continuity Management team to ensure that the business priorities are explicitly defined and documented 

along with the required Recovery Time Objectives (RTO) for each system. 

Disaster Recovery Testing 

 There is a need to record the use of the "Veeam SureBackup" technology in the Test Restores spreadsheet to reduce the risk of not being able to show that 

the backup processes operate as expected.  This technology is a way to test the integrity of the backup files by recovering them into a special environment 

that is separate to the Council’s network. 

Operational Effectiveness Matters 

The operational effectiveness matters, for management to consider relate to the following: 

 Consideration to be given to the creation of an offline copy of the DR technical data.  This could be in the form of USB memory sticks that are held in multiple 

locations. 

 Consideration to be given to implementing a process whereby the code on the server room door lock is changed on a periodic basis and when an officer with 

knowledge of the code leaves their role. 

 Consideration to be given to the installation of CCTV, or webcam, technology within the server room at the Priory Road site. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 90



Document is Restricted

Page 91

Agenda Item 11.
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3. Minutes
	4. Annual Treasury Management Review 2019/20
	5. Governance and Audit Committee Work Programme
	Work Programme Appendix A

	6. Follow Up Report on Internal Audit Recommendations
	Appendix

	7. Annual Report and Opinion 2019/20
	Appendix

	8. Progress Report on Internal Audit Activity
	Appendix

	11. Progress report on Internal Audit activity (exempt appendix)

